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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Overall Performance

For the year ended 30 April 2015, the Group generated turnover from continuing
operations of approximately HK$12.9 million (2014: approximately HK$6.8 million) with
a loss for the year from continuing operations of approximately HK$3.5 million (2014:
approximately HK$26.6 million). The smaller loss for the year was mainly due to, amongst
others, (i) realised and unrealised gain on investments in listed equity securities, (ii)
reduction in non-cash impairment loss, and (iii) reduction in staff costs. Our Financial
Services business has broadened its customer base, resulting in an increase in its income
during this financial year, and continues to explore opportunities for asset-trading of
loans. Our Property business continues to provide a steady stream of income to the
Group. Our Securities business has been operating to achieve risk-adjusted returns which
contributed a net realised and unrealised gain on securities investment during this year
as compared with a loss during the previous year. In our Food & Beverage business, the
Group agreed to sell a restaurant operation in the PRC, following which we continue to
seek new opportunities in smaller-scale and more casual food and related consumer
services businesses. Our Technology & Media business has been developing income as
we seek different business and investment opportunities, such as media and marketing
related services and products, and entertainment and related technology services and
products.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Financial Services

During the year, revenue of our financial services business was approximately HK$0.8
million (2014: approximately HK$0.6 million) with a business segment loss for the year of
approximately HK$0.1 million (2014: loss of approximately HK$4.3 million).

Securities

Our securities business recorded a net realised and unrealised gain on trading of
securities investment of approximately HK$6.0 million (2014: loss of approximately
HK$1.0 million), which contributed a gain for our securities segment of approximately
HK$6.4 million (2014: loss of approximately HK$1.0 million) for the year ended 30 April
2015.

Property

The revenue of the Group’s property business segment was approximately HK$5.6 million
(2014: approximately HK$5.3 million). The business segment contributed a profit of
HK$3.9 million (2014: profit of approximately HK$9.2 million) to the Group. Excluding the
gain on unrealised fair value, the recurring profit of the property business segment would
have been approximately HK$4.8 million (2014: approximately HK$4.4 million).

Technology & Media

Our technology & media business recorded revenue of approximately HK$0.5 million
(2014: HK$1.6 million) with a business segment loss for the year of approximately HK$1.9
million (2014: loss of approximately HK$10.6 million).

Food & Beverage

During the year, revenue for our food & beverage business from continuing operations
was approximately HK$nil (2014: approximately HK$0.3 million), resulting in a segment
loss of approximately HK$0.1 million (2014: loss of approximately HK$0.6 million).

SEASONAL/CYCLICAL FACTORS

The sales volume during festive periods is normally higher than the sales volume in the
slack periods of the year for food & beverage operations.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained cash and bank balances as at 30 April 2015 amounting to
approximately HK$55.4 million (2014: approximately HK$51.6 million). The Group’s
current ratio as at 30 April 2015 was 1.7 (2014: 1.8). The total equity of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$259.2 million (2014: approximately HK$265.9 million) as
at 30 April 2015.

Gearing

The gearing ratio, as a ratio of bank borrowings to total equity, was 0.13 as at 30 April
2015 (2014: 0.14).

Exchange Rate Exposure

As at 30 April 2015, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted to approximately
HK$55.4 million, the majority of which was in Hong Kong dollars. Since the majority of
the Group’s transactions, monetary assets and liabilities is denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, United States dollars and Renminbi, with relatively stable exchange rates of
Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars and Hong Kong'’s linked exchange rate between United
States dollar and Hong Kong dollar, the Group has minimal exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its ordinary operations with internally generated resources
and bank borrowings. The interest rates of borrowings, if applicable, are generally
charged by reference to prevailing market rates.

Commitments
The Group had no capital commitments during the year (2014: nil).
FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the global business environment is expected to remain uncertain and
the Group will continue to seek further business and investment opportunities.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 April 2015, the Group had 49 (2014: 104) employees in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The Group has not experienced any significant problems with its employees or
disruptions due to labour disputes nor has it experienced difficulties in the recruitment
and retention of experienced staff. The Group remunerates its employees based on
industry practices. Its staff benefits, welfare, share options and statutory contributions, if
any, are made in accordance with individual performance and prevailing labour laws of
its operating entities.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
BT

Executive Directors

Vong Tat leong David, aged 53, has been a director of the Company since 2005 and
serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr Vong has acquired and run
public companies, and made and advised on cross-border mergers and acquisitions,
involving capital markets and private equity, for over 20 years. He was formerly Vice
Chairman of the Board of Directors of CITIC 21CN Company Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, from 2003-2004. Before that, he was Director and Deputy Chief
Executive of i100 Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since he co-founded
the 1100 Group in 2000 with an international consortium whose key participants included
management and leading institutional investors. Prior to that, he was Chief Executive at
Pollon Infrastructure Corporation, an infrastructure investment holding company focused
on power and telecom assets in the PRC, since 1997. Mr Vong is a graduate of Yale Law
School and The London School of Economics and Political Science.

Xu Siping, aged 57, has been a director of the Company since 2005 and held a series
of senior policy positions for about 18 years at the PRCs State Economic and Trade
Commission and the National Development and Reform Commission (formerly the State
Planning Commission), from 1983-2000, before retiring from public service in the central
government. Mr Xu is a graduate of Dalian University of Technology.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Fung Ka Keung David, aged 52, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company since 2005, is Assistant Vice President at Golden Concord Holdings Limited
and an Executive Director of Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange. He is a member of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr Fung graduated from Leicester University.

Lam Lee G., aged 56, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since 2005. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics and Sciences, a Master
of Science in Systems Science, and a Master of Business Administration, all from the
University of Ottawa in Canada, a Post-graduate Diploma in Public Administration from
Carleton University in Canada, a Post-graduate Diploma in English and Hong Kong Law
and a Bachelor of Law (Hons) from Manchester Metropolitan University in the UK., a
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the City University of Hong Kong, a Master of
Laws from the University of Wolverhampton in the U.K., a Certificate in Professional
Accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong Kong SCS, and a Doctor of Philosophy
from the University of Hong Kong. Dr Lam is a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong
and an Honorary Fellow of CPA Australia. Dr Lam has international experience in general
management, management consulting, corporate governance, investment banking,
direct investment and fund management across the telecommunications, media and
technology (TMT), consumer/healthcare, infrastructure/real estates, resources/energy and
financial services sectors. Dr Lam is Chairman — Indochina, Myanmar and Thailand, and
Senior Adviser — Asia, of Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets. Actively participating
in community service, Dr Lam has served as a Part-time Member of the Central Policy
Unit of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for two terms, a
Member of the Legal Aid Services Council, and a member of the New Business Committee
of the Financial Services Development Council (FSDC), Dr Lam is a Member of the Jilin
Province Committee (and formerly a specially-invited Member of the Zhejiang Province
Committee) of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Vice Chairman of
Liaoning Chinese Overseas Friendship Association, a Member of the Derivatives Market
Consultative Panel of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx), a Member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a Member of the World Presidents’ Organization,
a Member of the Chief Executives Organization, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, an Accredited Mediator of
the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution (CEDR), a Board Member of the Australian
Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong and Macau, a Founding Board Member and the
Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong-Vietnam Chamber of Commerce, a Member of the
Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council, a founding Member of the Hong Kong — Korea
Business Council, a Vice President of the Hong Kong Real Property Foundation, Chairman
of Monte Jade Science and Technology Association of Hong Kong, President of Hong
Kong — ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation (HKAECF) and a Member of the Court
of City University of Hong Kong. He is Chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Company’s Nomination Committee.

Wong Man Ngar Edna, aged 49, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company since 2005, is Senior Consultant at UBM Asia, a Director of Xact Limited,
and was formerly Regional Marketing Manager at American Express, and Management
Consultant at The Mitchell Madison Group in New York. She is a graduate of Columbia
Business School and is a member of the Company’s Audit Committee.
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The directors have pleasure to present their report and the audited financial statements
of Vongroup Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the“Group”) for the year ended
30 April 2015.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of the Group comprise financial services businesses, securities businesses, property
businesses, technology & media businesses and food & beverage businesses. Details of
the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities for the year
ended 30 April 2015 is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 April 2015 and the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 17 to
19. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) do not recommend payment of any
dividends in respect of the year.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published consolidated financial results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out on page 79. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Lease Premium for Land and
Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, lease premium for land and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes 16 to 18 to the
financial statements, respectively. Further details of the Group’s properties are set out on
page 80.

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and share options during the
year, together with the reasons therefore, are set out in notes 34 and 35 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 30 April 2015.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are
set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 30 April 2015, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$242.5 million. This includes the Company’s share premium account,
in the amount of approximately HK$540.6 million as at 30 April 2015, which may be
distributed provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In addition, the Company’s capital
redemption reserve in the amount of approximately HK$0.26 million may be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The revenue attributable to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less
than 30% of the total Group’s revenue for the year. Purchases from the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the total Group’s purchases for the
year.

Commitments

The Group had no capital commitment during the year (2014: nil).

Exchange Rates Exposure

Details of the exchange rate exposure are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Vong Tat leong David
Xu Siping

Independent non-executive Directors:
Fung Ka Keung David

Lam Lee G.

Wong Man Ngar Edna

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr Vong and Ms
Wong will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Independence Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors a
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Board
of Directors is satisfied with the independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Apart from the transactions disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, no Director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Vong Tat leong David has an employment agreement with a subsidiary of the Group
commencing on 3 September 2005, which will continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing or until
terminated by mutual consent.

Xu Siping has an employment agreement with a subsidiary of the Group commencing on
3 September 2005, which will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either
party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing or until terminated by mutual
consent.

Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of Directors with reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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Director’s and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 30 April 2015, the interests and short positions of the Director and chief executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
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as follows:
Interests in the Shares of the Company i NS s
Appropriate
The Company/Name of percentage of
Name of Director associated company Capacity Interest in shares shareholding
EEfE KAT/HEATNEE H RO ER BHAERES T
Vong Tat leong David (Note) The Company Held through a controlled corporation 3,962,000,000 ordinary 67.61%
=EL (M) ZN/NG| BRI A shares of HK$0.001 each
3,962,000,0004%
HRREE0.001B L2
AR
Note: The interest of Mr Vong is held by Vongroup Holdings Limited, of which he is the ultimate Miat - EhREZESTIREAREELRMEAS A ZVongroup Holdings

beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2015, none of the Directors had registered an
interest in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note 35 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them or was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Substantial Shareholder’s Interest in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 30 April 2015, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital
of the Company were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Name of shareholders

Limited¥5 74 °
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Percentage of
the Company’s

Interest in shares issued share capital

AR TSRIT
REEE S R R RAEzED
Vong Tat leong David (Note)
Ex=2210 ) 3,962,000,000 67.61%
Vongroup Holdings Limited (Note)
Vongroup Holdings Limited (#/7%) 3,962,000,000 67.61%

Note: The relationship between Vongroup Holdings Limited and Mr Vong is disclosed under

“Director’s and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2015, no person other than the Directors of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Director’s and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” had registered an interest in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company that was required to be
recorded under Section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 30 September 2011 (the “New
Scheme”). Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Directors of the Company, at their discretion,
may grant options to Directors, officers and employees (whether full time or part-time)
of the Company or a subsidiary and any other groups or classes of suppliers, customers,
sub-contractors or agents of the Group from time to time determined by the Directors as
having contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of the Group. No
share options were outstanding nor granted during the year ended 30 April 2015.

Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions entered by the Group during the year ended 30 April
2015, which also constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed
in note 38 to the financial statements.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance and
has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (‘CG Code) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Further information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued share capital was held
by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

A resolution for re-appointment of CCIF CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company for
the ensuing year is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Vong Tat leong David
Executive Director

Hong Kong
31 July 2015
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The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and improving the quality of corporate
governance so to ensure better transparency of the Company, protection of shareholders’
and stakeholders’ rights and enhance shareholder value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the code provisions of the
(G Code, except for the deviation from code provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.6.7 of the CG
Code as described below.

Under code provision A.2.1, the role of chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”)
should be performed by different individuals. Since September 2005, Vong Tat leong
David, who is a director and CEO of the Company, has also carried out the responsibilities
of the chairman of the Company. The Board considers the present structure is more
suitable to the Company for it can provide strong and consistent leadership and allow
for more efficient formulation and implementation of the Company’s development
strategies.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The non-executive Directors of the Company, including
the independent non-executive Directors, are not appointed for a specific term but are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the
Company at least once every three years as specified in the Bye-laws of the Company. As
such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors shall attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. There are
three independent non-executive Directors of the Company; they were unable to attend
the 2014 annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 September 2014 due to
their engagement with their other commitments.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS

The directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training programmes at
the Company’s expense to update themselves with legal and regulatory developments,
and the business and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Continuing briefings and professional development to directors will be arranged
whenever necessary.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirms that all
Directors have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 30 April 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at 30 April 2015, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) comprises five members: two
executive Directors, namely Vong Tat leong David (Chief Executive Officer) and Xu Siping;
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Fung Ka Keung David, who has
the professional and accounting qualifications required by the Listing Rules, Lam Lee G.
and Wong Man Ngar Edna.

The biographical details of the Board members are set out on page 6 of this Annual
Report.
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Roles and Functions

The function of the Board is to formulate corporate strategy and business development.
The Board meets regularly to discuss operational issues and valuate the financial
performance of the Group. The Board will consider and approve acquisition and disposal,
remuneration policy, appointment and retirement of directors, connected transactions,
placing and repurchase of shares and dividend policy of the Group in pursuit of its
strategic goals, if required. The chairmanship of the Board of the Company is elected at
each Board meeting. Control and day to day operation of the Company is delegated to
the Chief Executive Officer and the management of the Company.

Board Meetings and Attendance Record

The Board held 7 Board meetings during the year ended 30 April 2015 and additional
Board meetings would be held when necessary. The Directors who cannot attend in
person might participate through other electronic means of communications. Due notice
and relevant materials for the meeting were given to all Directors prior to the meetings
in accordance with the Company’s articles of association and the CG Code. Details of
individual attendance of Directors are set out in the table below:

Members of the Board Attended/Held

VONG Tat leong David 717
XU Siping 4/7
FUNG Ka Keung David 717
LAM Lee G. 6/7
WONG Man Ngar Edna 5/7

Relationship Among Members of the Board

There is no relationship among members of the Board in respect of financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers the independent non- executive Directors to be independent.

Under code provision A.4.1, the non-executive Directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Company’s articles of association, and the terms of their appointment
will be reviewed when they are due for re-election. As such, the Board considers that
sufficient measures are in place to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those set out in the CG Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four board committees to strengthen its functions and
corporate governance practices, namely, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Executive Committee and Nomination Committee. The Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee perform their specific roles in accordance with
their respective written terms of reference. The Executive Committee assists the Group in
corporate strategy, business development and operations.

Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of three independent non-executive
Directors, currently, Lam Lee G. (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Fung Ka Keung
David and Wong Man Ngar Edna. The Audit Committee members performed their duties
within written terms of reference formulated by the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering all relationships between the
Company and the auditing firm (including the provision of non-audit services),
monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, any issues arising from
the audit and any other auditors may wish to raise and review of the Company’s internal
control and risk management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year with an attendance rate of
100%. In the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements for the
year ended 30 April 2014 and for the six months ended 31 October 2014, considered
and approved the audit work of the auditors and reviewed the business and financial
performance of the Company and the internal control system and risk management.

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 April 2015 have been reviewed by the
Company’s Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration Committee is composed of two independent non-executive
Directors, Lam Lee G. (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Fung Ka Keung
David, and one executive Director, Vong Tat leong David. The Remuneration Committee
members performed their duties within written terms of reference formulated by the
Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible of developing remuneration policies and
in overseeing remuneration packages of the Directors whether the emoluments offered
are appropriate to the duties and performance of the respective individuals concerned.
It is the Company’s policy to offer remuneration packages which are competitive and
sufficient to retain such individuals and no Director is involved in decision of his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year with an attendance
rate of 100%. In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved the
remuneration of Directors according to their respective responsibilities, expertise and
performance.

Nomination Committee

The Company’s Nomination Committee is composed of two independent non-executive
Directors, Lam Lee G and Fung Ka Keung David and one executive Director, Vong Tat
leong David (Chairman of the Nomination Committee). The Nomination Committee
members performed their duties with written terms of reference formulated by the
Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships. The Nomination
Committee also responsible to assess the independence of the INEDs and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year with an attendance rate of
100%.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The amount of audit fee payable to CCIF CPA Limited for the year ended 30 April 2015
was HK$560,000.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls of the Company
and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed to implementing an effective
and sound internal control system to safeguard the interest of shareholders and the
Group’s assets. The Board has delegated to the management the implementation of
the system of internal controls and reviewing of all relevant financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions within an established framework.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements for
the year under review. The Directors ensure the preparation of the financial statements
of the Group are in accordance with statutory requirements and suitable accounting
policies.

The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report of
this Annual Report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company communicates with its shareholders through different channels, including
annual general meetings, special general meetings, annual and interim reports, notices
of general meetings and circulars sent to shareholders by post, announcements on the
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.

Registered shareholders are notified by post of the shareholders’ meetings. Any registered
shareholder is entitled to attend and vote at the annual and special general meetings,
provided that his/her/its shares have been fully paid up and recorded in the register of
members of the Company.

Shareholders or investors can make enquiries or proposals to the Company by putting
their enquiries or proposals to the Company through the contact details listed in our
Company’s website.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURHERE

CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED
PRE RSB BAARAT

9/F Leighton Centre
77 Leighton Road
Causeway Bay Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VONGROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vongroup Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 17 to 78, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 30 April 2015, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group as at 30 April 2015, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 July 2015

Leung Chun Wa
Practising Certificate Number P04963
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mermERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015
BE-Z-nFNA=tALEE

2015 2014
—E-EHF —T—MmF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
liEss FET FHET
(Restated)
(& E5)
Continuing operations: BEKSEEL
Turnover =S 4 12,889 6,774
Other revenue Hth W 6 1,664 1,885
Other net income HfhiE U A 6 - 4,216
Cost of inventories consumed OB EN AR (122) (329)
Staff costs 8 TAA (5,183) (16,665)
Operating lease rentals LERNMES (575) (634)
Depreciation and amortisation ERBEHE (579) (1,065)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 19 - (4,631)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investment AHHERE ZREEE 22 - (9,430)
Other expenses HibFsZ (10,255) (9,418)
Change in fair value of investment properties REWMEZRTEE 18 (933) 4,850
Loss from operations REEE (3,094) (24,447)
Finance costs BF TR AN 8 (469) (497)
Loss hefore taxation BRBLAIE R (3,563) (24,944)
Income tax Frigt 9(a) 61 (1,691)
Loss for the year from continuing operations TEEFEREXKER (3,502) (26,635)
Discontinued operation: BRIEEEET
Loss for the year from discontinued operation REFDRILCEERER 10 (3,161) (7,947)
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the RAREE ANEIEARFERBE
Company (6,663) (34,582)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year AEEHMEE(EBR) WS
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit HingEmozigsyEA ¢
or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of BREBINNBRRMEREREEZEREE
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries (2) 830
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable ZAATREEABEERNZEEEHEE
to owners of the Company (6,665) (33,752)
Basic and diluted loss per share (HK$) BREARBESFR(BT) 15
— from continuing and discontinued operations —BHECEEE B RIEEEER (0.0011) (0.0059)
— from continuing operations —BHEBCEET (0.0006) (0.0045)
— from discontinued operation —BRIEKEER (0.0005) (0.0014)

The notes on pages 22 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ERAEF7BAZMEBRILSUBRE 2 —55 -

\

17



18

Vongroup Limited Annual Report 2015

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBRRR
AS AT 30 APRIL 2015
R-ZB-HFNA=+A

2015 2014
—E-1F —Pa4
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FE T T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y WEREE 16 14,472 15,660
Lease premium for land TiEE 17 - -
Investment properties REME 18 186,949 187,882
Goodwill RS 19 - -
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and RREME BELSBINZIES
equipment 21 367 367
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 22 2,452 2,452
204,240 206,361
Current assets REBEE
Inventories VERY 23 2,128 3,871
Forfeited collateral held for sale FERLUBEER R 23 683 583
Accounts receivable FEULER X 24 - 1,756
Loans and advances to money lending customers MREREFPER BN 25 8,387 4,388
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BRI H AR UKER R 26 29,513 33,695
Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss BRAFENERYIRZBHFRE 27 31,124 32,815
Deposits placed with financial institutions SREIBTR 28 1,495 6,423
Cash and bank balances R RIBITHER 29 55,366 51,647
128,696 135,178
Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale SEAFELEZHEMARIEE 10 7,433 -
136,129 135,178
Current liabilities REAE
Accounts payable FETBRER 30 - 1,993
Accruals and deposits received EETFENE WiR S 31 9,072 13,341
Bank borrowings ﬁEfﬂﬁIsa 32 34,036 35,982
Tax payable FERBIE 33(a) 829 23,547
43,937 74,863
Liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale D iEABFIEHEZ HEMRIBE 10 36,523 -
80,460 74,863
Net current assets REBEETFE 55,669 60,315
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARE 259,909 266,676
Non-current liahilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEXEHIBEAE 33(h) 686 788
NET ASSETS EERE 259,223 265,888
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRA R
Share capital [ 34 5,860 5,860
Reserves & 253,363 260,028
TOTAL EQUITY HmiER 259,223 265,888
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 July 2015. RZE—RFEtA-t+—HEESSHEREERE M-
On behalf of the board REEFE
Director Director
4 =3

The notes on pages 22 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements. FNEEFE ZHFEBRIL ST E®RERZ



A EEARAT FHH2015

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BRI R
AS AT 30 APRIL 2015
R-Z-HAFWA=1+H

2015 2014
—E—-A8F —T—UF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHEIT

Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIRE 20(a) - -

Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 2 AR BRI R H Ab FE U AR 3R 26 10 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE B /B X R 3R 1B 20(b) 264,358 249,807
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTEH 29 3,694 16,092
268,062 265,899
Current liabilities REBAE

Accruals and deposits received Rt E KB WIRS 31 491 27
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHH B A RIRUE 20(c) 16,100 16,100
16,591 16,127
Net current assets REBEETFE 251,471 249,772
NET ASSETS EEFE 251,471 249,772

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRA R
Share capital R 34 5,860 5,860
Reserves & 36 245,611 243,912
TOTAL EQUITY BrEw 251,471 249,772

19

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 July 2015. RZE—RAFEA=+T—BREFSRERBELMH -

On behalf of the board REESE
Director Director
o o

The notes on pages 22 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements. FENEER78E 2 MFEBKILEMBHRE 2 —E5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEBREHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015
BE-Z-AFNMA=THLEE

Capital ~ Statutory  Exchange
Share Share redemption surplus translation Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(&N EE
i) e 2tk EX By
(&S g 3] 3] 3 BB st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FHET FET FET FET TR
At 1 May 2013 R-_E—=FRAF—H 5,860 533,020 262 270 1,685 (241,457) 299,640
Loss for the year REEEBE - - - - - (34,582) (34,582)
Exchange differences on BREGINNE AR HRREL
translation of financial ZEHERE
statements of overseas
subsidiaries - - - - 830 - 830
Total comprehensive income/ FRzEkE /(BB BE
(loss) for the year - - - - 830 (34,582) (33,752)
At 30 April 2014 and 1 May 2014 RZZE-—OFMA=+ER
“ZE—-NFRA—H 5,860 533,020 262 270 2,515 (276,039) 265,888
Loss for the year REEEE - - - - - (6,663) (6,663)
Exchange differences on BREGINNE AR HRREL
translation of financial ZIEHZE
statements of overseas
subsidiaries - - - - ) - 2)
Total comprehensive loss for the FRNEEEELE
year - - - - ) (6,663) (6,665)
At 30 April 2015 R-ZE-EFEMA=+H 5,860 533,020 262 270 2,513 (282,702) 259,223

The notes on pages 22 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements.




A EEARAT FHH2015

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015

BE-Z-AFNAZ=+tHLFE

2015 2014
—E-HEF — g4
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B s FHExT FAET
Operating activities R
Loss before taxation including discontinued operation BREDRIEEEER 2 BRATER (6,724) (32,891)
Adjustments for: MRERE -
Bank interest income RITHBHA 6 (129) (108)
Finance costs BTG RN AR 8,10 469 507
Dividend income from listed securities EWEHZBREWMA 6 (599) (572)
Gain on disposal of lease premium for land & LS 2 W 6 - (2,011)
Other interest income E R 28U A 6 (803) (803)
Impairment loss on goodwill Fﬁ%ﬂfﬁ%?ﬁ 19 - 4,631
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale investment HHERE 2 RERE 22 - 9,430
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W% BE N EETE 16 833 1,540
Amortisation of lease premium for land TR S #E S 17 - 1
Net (gain)/loss on equity investments at fair value BATEMERIIRZEHEE 2 (a),/
through profit or loss EEFR 4 (6,036) 1,039
Change in fair value of investment properties wEMEZ NTEZE) 18 933 (4,850)
Written back of accruals WS FERTRIE 6 - (2,205)
(12,056) (26,282)
Changes in working capital EEESNE
Decrease in inventories ¢?§?Jﬁ9> 1,442 3,108
Increase in forfeited collateral held for sale 15 B 15082 WHE ! n 4 10 (100) (90)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable e BRSO (38 0) 1,447 (1,483)
(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances to money MRES P ERRBRGLM), F
lending customers (3,999) 396
Increase in deposits, prepayments and other Zd  TETBR R R E A FE U AR FR3E A0
receivables (1,056) (8,192)
Decrease/(increase) in equity investments at fair Tﬁ@ﬁ{ﬁl«ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂ%Zﬁ%&é
value through profit or loss A (48 7,727 (6,977)
Decrease in deposits placed with financial %mﬂ%%ﬁmﬁzd\
institutions 4,928 6,939
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable FEFBRRCR ), /1840 (160) 289
Increase in accruals and deposits received FEETFRIE N B Uiz & 1N 7,760 2,474
Cash generated from/(used in) operations EEEE (AR 5,933 (29,818)
PRC enterprise income tax paid ERPEPEMRSH 33(a) (98) (17)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded EREFBRER 33(a) - 22
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating BEEREE (FRZREFE
activities 5,835 (29,813)
Investing activities REEH
Bank interest received EHERTTHE 6 129 108
Dividend received from listed securities Euﬂli?ﬁ%‘%% B 6 599 572
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment LIEN NG 16 (57) (72)
Increase in deposits paid in respect of acquisition of ?ﬂ%,\%i lﬂ?’%&* HBEMZZSEM
property, plant and equipment 21 - (106)
Return on investment in Newport MNewport,Z 1 & W& 22(ii) - 5,000
Proceeds from disposal of lease premium for land HETinfe 2 5B - 3,462
Net cash generated from investing activities RETHEEZESTFE 671 8,964
Financing activities REEE
Bank interest paid BTRITHE 8 (469) (497)
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid EﬁpﬁﬁfﬁéZ%‘ B 10 - (10)
Repayment of bank borrowings 1@5&?&(7 (1,946) (1,922)
Repayment of finance lease payable F’iﬁpﬁﬁfﬁiﬁm - (195)
Net cash used in financing activities Hﬂﬁ?ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ ZHREFE (2,415) (2,624)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReRRSEEBEREM CRL)RE
equivalents 4,091 (23,473)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNBIERG B 2 B (2) 1,051
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 May RAER—BAZRENEEZEEHIER 51,647 74,069
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 April ROB=+HzEERREZEEER 55,736 51,647
Represented by: HUTRE :
Continuing operations SHA 58 29 55,366 51,647
Discontinued operation Bl S 10 370 -
55,736 51,647
The notes on pages 22 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements. FNEFEFEBE MBS BHREZ — 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M H AR MY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015
BE-Z-AFNA=THLEE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The address of its principal place of business is 17A, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in note 20.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, at 30 April 2015, Vongroup Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which owns 67.61% of the issued share
capital of the Company, is the parent and the ultimate holding company and Mr. Vong Tat leong
David is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative period, as
permitted by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), continue to be those of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32). These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Listing Rules. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs which are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note 3 provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2015 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), rounded to the nearest thousand except for per share data. Hong Kong dollar is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis, except for investment properties and equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss that are measured at fair value.

Disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (note 2(x)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgments about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

9

d)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have a significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 39.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether
the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at
cost less impairment losses (see note 2(j)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair values, except that:

— adeferred tax asset or liability arising from the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
in a business combination and the potential tax effects of temporary differences and
carryforwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the
acquisition are recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes;

— assets or liabilities relating to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits;

— liabilities or equity instruments relating to share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

A EEARAT FHH2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015
BE-Z-AFNA=1+HLEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M H AR MY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015
BE-Z-AFNA=THLEE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

e)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRSs.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes
assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition date fair value and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be
appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are
adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date
of acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

g)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. If some or all of the goodwill allocated to a cash-generating unit was acquired
in a business combination during the current annual period, that unit shall be tested for
impairment before the end of the current annual period. If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(j)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

— leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is depreciated over the term of
lease;

—  buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the
date of completion;

—  Leasehold improvements 20% or over the remaining term of the lease,

if shorter

—  Furniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 10% — 20%

—  Motor vehicles 20%

—  Utensils and supplies 33-1/3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the

cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is

depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 2(i)) to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g)

h)

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial position at fair value, unless
they are still in the course of construction or development at the end of the reporting
period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 2(u)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease
(see note 2(i)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied
to other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 2(i).

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction
price unless it is determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending
on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends
or interest earned on these investments as these are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out in note 2(u)(v) and (ii).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above categories are classified
as available-for-sale securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the investment revaluation reserve. As an
exception to this, investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted price in an
active market for an identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably
measured are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(j)). Dividend income from equity securities is recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(u)(v).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer to the Group substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

—  Property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note 2(g)); and
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i) Leased assets (Continued)

i)

i)

i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group (Continued)

—  Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(f). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
2(j). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 2(g)).

j) Impairment of assets

i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as
follows:
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables (Continued)

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.

—  For other current receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of other receivables and loans and advances
to money lending customers, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against other receivables and loans and advances to money
lending customers directly and any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following assets may be impaired or, except in
the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment;

— lease premium for land,;

- goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i)

k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

if)  Impairment of other assets (Continued)

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying amount of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill and
available-for-sale equity securities and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity security increases in the remainder of the annual period, or
in any other period subsequently, the increase is recognised in other comprehensive
income and not profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out basis and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

|

m)

n)

o)

p)

q)

Uyl

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 2(j)).

Loans and advances to money lending customers

Loans and advances to money lending customers are non-derivatives financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, other than (i)
those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which are classified
as held for trading; (i) those that the Group, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair
value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale; or (iii) those where the Group may not
recover substantially all of its initial investments, other than because of credit deterioration,
which will be classified as available-for-sale. Loans and advances to money lending
customers mainly comprise pawn loans, unsecured and secured loans. Pawn loans are loans
provided whereby personal property mainly such as gold, jewellery and diamonds, watches
and consumer electronic products are used as collateral for the security of the loans.
Unsecured loans are loans without collateral. Secured loan is a loan provided whereby the
property is used as collateral for the security of the loan.

Forfeited collateral held for sale

Forfeited collateral are initially recognised at the amortised cost of the related outstanding
loans on the date of repossession, which is generally below the net realisable value of the
repossessed assets. Upon repossession of the assets, the related loans and advances together
with the related impairment allowances, if any, are derecognised from the statement of
financial position. Subsequently, forfeited collateral is carried at the lower of the amount
initially recognised or net realisable value and are therefore written down if and when the
net realisable value falls to below the carrying amount of the asset. The excess of the net
proceeds over the carrying amount of the forfeited collateral is recognised as a gain upon
the disposal of the assets.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contribution to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

ii)  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year under review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to accumulated losses).

iij) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

s)

u)

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(g), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or
the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group or
the Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivables. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

i) Revenue from food and beverage businesses

Revenue from food and beverage businesses is recognised when catering services have
been provided to customers.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

u)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

if)  Interest income

Interest income (including financial services income) is recognised in profit or loss on
an accruals basis using the effective interest method.

i) Revenue from sale of forfeited collateral

Revenue from sale of forfeited collateral is recognised on the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the forfeited
collateral is delivered and the title has passed to customer.

iv) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

v)  Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

vi) Revenue from technology and media businesses

Revenue from technology and media businesses is recognised when the services have
been performed to customers.

vii) Revenue from trading of securities

Net gains/losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and those held
for trading include realised gains/losses which are recognised on a transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are exchanged; and unrealised fair value gains/losses
which are recognised in the period in which they arise.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from
foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

w)

x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

i)

i)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in its
present condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as
a group in a single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a subsidiary,
all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
above criteria for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the non-current
assets (and all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on
initial classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions
to this measurement policy so far as the financial statements of the Group and the
Company are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)
and investment properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-
current asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and
cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and
—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs

to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting the
discontinued operation.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

y) Related parties

a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that
person:

) has control or joint control over the Group;
i) has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

ii)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial information provided regularly to the chief
executive director of the Company, being the Group’s chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting
HK(IFRIC) 21 Levies

3.
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3.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the new or amended HKFRSs are discussed
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those parents which qualify to be an investment
entity as defined in the amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities are required to measure their
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. These amendments do not have an impact on
these financial statements as the Company does not qualify to be an investment entity.

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32. The amendments do not
have an impact on these financial statements as they are consistent with the policies already
adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 36 — Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure requirements for impaired non-financial
assets. Among them, the amendments expand the disclosures required for an impaired asset or
CGU whose recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal. The amendments do
not have an impact on these financial statements for the years presented.

Amendments to HKAS 39 — Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation
of a derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. As the Group does not
have any derivatives that are subject to novation, the application of these amendments has had
no impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

HK(IFRIC) 21- Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a liability to pay a levy imposed by a government
should be recognised. The amendments do not have an impact on these financial statements as
the guidance is consistent with the Group’s existing accounting policies.

TURNOVER AND REVENUE

Turnover represents revenue from the principal activities of the Group. The amount of each
significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

SR BER2S (&)

A 3 AN A G SRR AR R TR R R SR R o
RSB BB RS LR ZZETRAOT

FRMBMEERE 0% BEUBREENF2RREEEH
ERE27H 2B (ZF——F)-RERE

HEAETRERRRETRERBRELNF10RERZ
REBBZHRA PHREAHEREZER  ZEETARNER
EERERRERATFEMEAWNBAR AN ARTLTHE
ARBRALR RRETHRENBRELBEZE -

BREHEASERR BT - THEBEERMBAE

BR G ERERRETAREE T B G ERIE325 2 R
o ARZEETRBARECRBZ G BE -2 HEHZE
MBMRA BT E -

BRETEUSECR BT - FUBEEZTURESERE

BARGHERIFCH BRI BRI EEREZ REER A
o ZEFETREALRIE A FEREEKAFTE R RE SR8
EEEXREELBUIRBER - ZEEFTHMERFE L&
SHBRRTEZE -

BREERER BT —TETAEEREITEMEZER

N—ERERHDTAZITE TR BERE TRER &E
B ERE3R 2 BRI RIFEE S e HR RS - AR AR
EWHFEREZEATE TR BAZSETHASEGA MR
RAREZ AL RAL EEREAFE -

B (ARPBRERBREE)-REBENH -8

ZRBELXNBASE BB #RIFLIES - ARESI EA %
EREZ ERER B MRFETHZENBRRLELE -

EES Ve

EEPEAEE TEEBRA - FABRREXRRAZEH
FRHT

2015 2014
—ZE-AHF —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
[€=))
Continuing operations: BHELSEEE

Financial services income S FARELA 777 631

Net gain/(loss) on equity investments at fair value through profit or loss %A F({EIAIB2TI8E 2 BHIRE 2 Wk /(E18)
F1E 6,036 (1,039)
Gross rental income from investment properties REREMEZ ERSWA 5,593 5,279
Income from technology & media businesses i R SRS FE AU 483 1,560
Income from food & beverage businesses BEREBBA - 343

12,889 6,774




SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised by business lines (products
and services). In a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s executive directors, being the Group’s chief operating decision maker (“CODM”)
for the purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following six reportable segments. No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.
1. Financial services: Consumer finance, moneylending, other financial/business
services and related activities
Securities: Securities and related activities
Property: Real property and related activities
Technology & Media:  Technology & media and related activities
Food & Beverage: Catering services, other food & beverage business and related
activities
6. Corporate treasury Management of treasury activities of the Group and related
management: activities

vA W

During the year, as disclosed in note 10, the restaurant operation in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") that had been identified and included under the food & beverage segment
in previous years was discontinued. The Group will continue to pursue opportunities in this
segment.

The segment information reported below does not include any amounts for the discontinued
operation, which is described in more detail in note 10.

a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s CODM monitors the revenue, results, assets and liabilities attributable
to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets principally comprise all tangible and intangible assets and current assets
with the exception of certain available-for-sale investments and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include accounts payable, accruals and deposits received, tax payable
and deferred tax liabilities attributable to the operating activities of the individual segments
and borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with reference to sales
or financing activities generated by those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

5. DEHE (&)

a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities a)

Segment revenues and results

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for
the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance for the years
ended 30 April 2015 and 2014 is set out below:

SEWE XK BERRE
DI RFAE
FHBE-_ZT-REN_Z-NFNA=THEFERM

?ZFEEIEZ‘“%J&%%VE DECEIRE D ERREAE

ZAKEREDFERBINNT -

Continuing operations

Segment revenue Segment profit/(loss)
PEWE 2EEF(FHE)
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RE —E—F —E-1F —ZE—FE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET FERT FAT
(Restated) (Restated)
(48 571)) (4£57)
External: SNEB
Financial services SRR 777 631 (113) (4,334)
Securities e 6,036 (1,039) 6,389 (981)
Property LIES 5,593 5,279 3,875 9,202
Technology & Media Bl I 15 58 483 1,560 (1,929) (10,630)
Food & Beverage BER - 343 (122) (551)
Inter-segment: S¥Em
Corporate treasury management ENBEE 7,601 7,233 - -
Segment total DB 20,490 14,007 8,100 (7,294)
Elimination FaE:] (7,601) (7,233) -
Total for continuing operations FEE IS TS B 12,889 6,774 8,100 (7,294)
Unallocated items: ROBLIER ¢
Other revenue and other net income Hoth i as B E A F U 1,000 5,200
Unallocated corporate expenses RO ¥ERY (12,194) (22,353)
Finance costs BB AR (469) (497)
Loss before taxation from continuing REBELEER 2
operations Bl Al &R (3,563) (24,944)
Income tax Frig it 61 (1,691)
Loss for the year from continuing operations 7ZN4F [ 548 48 &4 2 T8 5518 (3,502) (26,635)

Segment revenue from financial services, property, technology & media and food &
beverage represents revenue generated from external customers. Segment revenue from
securities represents revenue generated from trading of listed equity securities. Segment
revenue from corporate treasury management represents revenue generated from deposits
in financial institutions and funds financing to companies within the Group. Funds
financing activities between segments are carried out at mutually agreed terms.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies. Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation
of other revenue and other net income, corporate expenses and finance costs of the Group
that are not allocated to individual segments are classified as unallocated items. This is
the measurement basis reported to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

KBS BIRT  W5%  Bt RERB AR ER 2 5 BIRE RN
REPEEZ WG - REEF 2D RRAEEE EHRAZE
FESZWE  RECEMBER 2D BREESREEBT
FEAREEETELRRHASREMEL 2 W -5
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) PERE (B)

b

a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (Continued) Q) kG EE BEERERE (B)

Segment assets and liabilities

DHEERAE

2015 2014
—E-RF —mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT

Segment assets PEEE
Financial services SRR 37,532 20,083
Securities EH 32,619 48,774
Property bES 193,590 194,254
Technology & Media Ry R 58 10,394 10,790
Food & Beverage Z8R 3,048 12,551
Corporate treasury management EFKER 20,433 19,087
Total reportable segment assets A2MABEERSE 297,616 305,539
Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale DERFIFHE C HEHRRIEE 7,433 -
Unallocated property, plant and equipment ROEZE - BB & &E 14,411 14,932
Unallocated available-for-sale investments KOBAIMEHERE 1,532 1,532
Unallocated cash and bank balances APBELIRE KIRTTHERR 296 1,330
Unallocated other receivables* 7R 53 B L At W BR SR 18,569 17,765
Unallocated corporate assets AOBEEEE 512 441
Consolidated total assets LAEBEE 340,369 341,539
*  Unallocated other receivables represented the right arising from the termination of an available-for- ¥ RO REHAMEWERFIERLIERAKRERIZERER AR (AKX

sale investment in Tian Da Energy Holdings Limited (“Tian Da”). Z A I B T E A 2 R

2015 2014
—E-AHF —ZT—-lF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&TT

Segment liabilities SEEE
Financial services S RR% 691 249
Property b/ES 39,339 37,905
Technology & media Ry K iR 82 84 82
Food & beverage Z8 - 35,309
Total reportable segment liabilities —J moEaERE 40,114 73,545

Liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale SEARBELEZ LEMAFIE 36,523

Unallocated liabilities KoilaE 4,509 2,106
Consolidated total liabilities ArpafE 81,146 75,651
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a)

b)

q

Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between
segments:

— segment assets exclude certain property, plant and equipment, available-for-sale
investments, cash and bank balances, other receivables and other unallocated

corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

— segment liabilities exclude certain accruals and deposits received and other
unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Additions to non-current assets

5. DEHE (&)

a)

Depreciation and amortisation

PEWH  ¥E EEREE (B)

RERSBERRER BRI ERME

- NAREETEEETHE BELRRE AJHIEER
B R RRTES  EMEUGER AREMARDE
CREEZEAE RAANSEEDNHEMEE-

- SRAEBETERETEFARSKZEREMARD
EtxaEzeE REALSEENHREHERE-

Interest income

BEERBEE R FEWA
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-AF —T-mEF —Z-hfF —ZT—mE —E-AF —E-lmF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FRT FAT FET FAET FER FA&T
(Restated) (Restated)
(B=51) (fEE50)
Continuing operations:  ISEQE LT :
Financial services SRR 12 43 13 1 52 45
Technology & Media iy M i e - — _ 2 _ _
Food & Beverage B - 7 - - - -
Corporate treasure TEBHER
management - - - - 77 63
Unallocated Fval ] 45 128 566 1,052 - -
Total st 57 178 579 1,065 129 108
In addition to the depreciation and amortisation reported above, impairment loss of B bl 25 2 T E LB SN - R ERL(E E5184,631,0008 L8
goodwill of HK$4,631,000 was attributable to the financial services segment during the year BREBE-_Z—NENA=1tHIFEZSRREHE-
ended 30 April 2014.
Geographical information b) ihigE R
The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group’s operations are mainly located in ARARBWAEE AEEEBETEDHRES AR KR
Hong Kong, PRC and Macau. Pqe
Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing operations from external customers BRNREFPEEZASERBELEEXEBRAZER YIZ
is presented based on the location of goods physically delivered to or location of services PREERI TS RHRAEP 2 RIRE 7 FTHib 2
provided to customers and the location of the investments being listed. Information about MEY MEBEERDEE 2ER NIREEMRIE M
its non-current assets is based on geographical location of the assets. JE e
Revenue Non-current assets
Wz FREBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-4fF —ZT-mF —Z-HF —E-lmF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FAT
(Restated)
(i =5)
Continuing operations: BESEEK
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (1) 11,925 5,297 175,167 175,682
PRC H 559 1,157 10,821 11,927
Macau JEPT 405 320 15,800 16,300
Total st 12,889 6,774 201,788 203,909
Information about major customers  FERIEEFZER

The Group has a very wide customer base, and no single customer contributed 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue for each of the two years ended 30 April 2015 and 2014.

AEEEFEEACEFE MEMEE —FFPEHAEH
BE_Z-AFR_Z-NFEA=tTHLMEFESF

Z YRR E10%B A £ o




6. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME
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6. H bk R EAMFRA

2015 2014
—B-EF —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FA&T
(Restated)
(4£57)
Continuing operations: RBEREER
Other revenue Hh s
Bank interest income RITH B UA 129 108
Other interest income HAaF BUA 803 803
Dividend income from listed securities EWESFZRIMWA 599 572
Management fee income BEBRA 120 120
Sundry income B A 13 282
1,664 1,885
Other net income HeFuA
Gain on disposal of land lease premium HETiEE - 2,011
Write back of accruals 4 FE AT IRIE - 2,205
- 4,216

7. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

Loss from operations from continuing operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

7. REEE

FECEEB 2 CEBRENR,/GEA) THEHE :

2015 2014
—E-RE —E—-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FA&T
(Restated)
(& E51)
Continuing operations: BEQSEER .
Cost of inventories consumed KOHETFER A 122 329
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments — note 11): BINA(BREESHE —ME11):
Wages and salaries TENES 5,108 16,595
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme RRET IR 75 70
5,183 16,665
Auditor’s remuneration*® %R A & 585 753
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - HEREETE 579 1,054
Amortisation of lease premium for land kil i - 1
Exchange loss, net* [& 5 B 18 F R 50 14
Operating lease rentals — minimum lease payments LERHAS - SEROER 575 634
Gross rental income from investment properties less direct outgoings of & ¥1% ~ 470 & W AR & % 134,000 7T
HK$134,000 (2014: HK$86,000) ZZ—J4 : 86,00047T) (5,459) (5,193)
*  This item is included in other expenses. * EAEEFAHMAS -
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MIHEMAE
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FaT FA&T
(Restated)
(& E3)
Continuing operations: BELEEL
Interest on bank borrowings not wholly repayable within five years BEARRAFNERERZRTEENR 468 493
Bank overdraft interest RITEZ L 1 4
469 497

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings, including term loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause, in accordance with the agreed scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements. For the year ended 30 April 2015, the interest on bank borrowings which
contain a repayment on demand clause amounted to HK$468,000 (2014: HK$493,000).

ZAOWMBRERBERGEMS B EEEARERZBITEE
(BEMBREREEGRZERET) 2HBRA -BE-T
—AFMA=TRHILFE WEREREEKRZBITEEZF]
E.5468,0007 7T (=T — 94 : 493,000/ 70 )
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9. INCOME TAX

a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income relating to a)

continuing operations represents:

9. FEHE

GEETERBRATEREKSEXB 2 MEHIE

2015 2014
—E-RF —ET-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FA&T
(Restated)
(48 57)
Continuing operations: BEREER

Income tax expense comprises: FISHiMS 81F «
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PRI EAEH([REMEH]) 41 201
Under provision of EIT in prior year BEFECEMSHBETR - 74
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") B IR (E R ([ g ERe ) - 628
Deferred tax (note 33(b)) SEFE R IE (T EE33(b)) (102) 788
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year REEMBER(ER)/FX (61) 1,691

No provision for profits tax in the Cayman lIslands, British Virgin Islands (“BVI") and
Hong Kong has been made as the Group has no assessable income for the year in these

jurisdictions (2014: Nil).

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax (‘EIT”) is calculated at the standard rate of 25%
(2014: 25%) on the estimated assessable income for the year as determined in accordance

with the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC.

The provision for the PRC Land Appreciation Tax (the “LAT”) is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been provided
at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value, with certain allowance exemptions

and deductions.

TR B E (=T —F - &)

AR AT BB

EEH A (M SE T rERT SR SRR )

AEERFATEEHENS ABEXHS((ZBELES])
RBERBUEARERBIMA Bt W B LS AR R 2 Fr5H

FRIMRAEHR(REMER]) DRETBEARMEHAR R
SERRFTEE R 2 RAER R25%( =T —U4F : 25%)  HRF N2 (H7THE

B R E R ([ B AR ) BB YRR AR BB A2
FOERIIAZRE et e T RER D REEBRE I RERKREH

b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss at applicable tax rates: b) BEXHEREABRITECSHEEZYE:

2015 2014

—Z-HF —E= e

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHAT

(Restated)

(& E31)

Loss before taxation from continuing operations REFFEEEER 2 RBATER (3,563) (24,944)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, calculated at RIBRARB AR AR N SN2 RS

the rate applicable to profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned MRERIEE s BRRIER (652) (4,055)

Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBIMAZ MG E (2,028) (1,340)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AAHRA Y 2 ST 2 1,213 3,416

Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised AERRSBEHIBERZRGTE 1,508 2,180

Tax effect of temporary differences recognised EMRERNEBEIRETE (102) 788

Tax effect of LAT THIEER 2 BB E - 628

Under-provision in prior year BEFERETR - 74

Actual income tax (credit)/expense BRATER(ER)/ S (61) 1,691




10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE

On 20 April 2015, the Group and an independent third party, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which, the Group agreed to sell and the independent third party agreed
to acquire, 100% equity interest of Kamboat China Limited (together with its wholly-owned
subsidiary, the “Disposal Group”), which has a restaurant operation in the PRC at a consideration
of HK$500,000.

The restaurant operation in the PRC was classified as discontinued operation and the assets and
liabilities attributable to the restaurant operation have been classified as a disposal group held
for sale as at 30 April 2015.

Loss for the year from discontinued operation, for the years ended 30 April 2015 and 2014, were
as follows:
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10. BRILEEEY FHEFEZ HEER

R-F-—AFNA-+RH AEBR-EBUFE=HIVER
g Et AEERELERBYE=FRERBERPRLEE
ERZEEMTEERAFNCERNEZENBARSEILER
Bl 1) 2 100% % A 2 - 118 £35500,00078 7T ©

REZE-AFNA=1TH RPBEZEREEC D ERERILE
EEGUREREERGEZEAERAGBCOBERFEFEZL
SR -

BE_Z-HFR-_Z-NFNA=ZTHLFEERILEEE
B FEBEIT

2015 2014

—E-AEF —E-mE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHAIT

Turnover = 15,864 19,165
Other revenue ek 1 54
Cost of inventories consumed FATEERA (7,007) (10,003)
Staff costs BIRKA (3,433) (7,195)
Operating lease rentals KEHEHS (4,562) (4,642)
Depreciation Eiin- (254) (486)
Other expenses HibFZ (3,770) (4,830)
Loss from operation K EE (3,161) (7,937)
Finance costs B ISR - (10)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation REEBRIMEEEREE (3,161) (7,947)

Cash flows for the year from discontinued operation were as follows:

AEEDRIELEEBBREE TSR

2015 2014

—2-If ki

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FA&T

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from operating activities KEEBEAZRERA/ (Rt F8E 80 (790)
Net cash outflows from investing activities REEBEEZBEMEIFRE - (6)
Net cash outflows from financing activities MEEFHEEZRERLFRE - (206)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from discontinued operation DRIEEEEBZBERA /Rl F8 80 (1,002)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the restaurant operation in the PRC as at 30 April RZE—HAFNA-THAHRFIREBEEZTZHAIZEER

2015, which have been presented separately as “Assets of a disposal group classified as held for
sale” and “Liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale” in the consolidated statement
of financial position, were as follows:

BE EREAVMBRARAEBRIRIABEAFKELEZE
EAFEE | R DBEAFELHEZHEMARNEE ] TR :

2015

—E-fHE

HK$’000

FHxT

Property, plant and equipment L ER I E T 412
Inventories & 301
Accounts and other receivables i L B R R L At B Uk R B 6,350
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITHER 370
Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale DERBIELE 2 HEHRRIEE 7,433
Accounts and other payables FE BR R R EL A FE A< 5k 0B 13,862
Income tax payable FERFTISH 22,661
Liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale PEABIEHEZLEERNEE 36,523
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11.

Directors’ emoluments disclosed with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) are as follows:

=S

SRABEDAGRE (FR2F) F161RRBEZESHHMMT ¢

Year ended 30 April 2015
BE-Z-AFWNA=1+HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e BiRE
=31 [Eh stEl
ws RENEF AL R #Er
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHAT FAT FHAT FAT
Executive directors HITES
Vong Tat leong David (Chief Executive Officer) =iE (TTHERE) 600 600 - - 1,200
Xu Siping RETT 500 - - - 500
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
Fung Ka Keung David ViR 100 - - - 100
Lam Lee G. K& 150 - - - 150
Wong Man Ngar Edna EDi 100 - - - 100
1,450 600 - - 2,050
Year ended 30 April 2014
HEZZT-WFNA=THILFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e RKE
ERL By atE
ik EEMEF TEAL 3R “aEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAT FHET FAT
Executive directors HITES
vong Tat leong David (Chief Executive Officer) HiEL (THREE) 5,400 600 6,500 - 12,500
Xu Siping BRETF 500 - - - 500
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHTES
Fung Ka Keung David 5558 100 - - - 100
Lam Lee G. MR8 150 - - - 150
Wong Man Ngar Edna T3 100 - - - 100
6,250 600 6,500 - 13,350




12. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

13.

14.

15.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2014: two) are directors of the
Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 11 above. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of the other three (2014: three) individuals were as follows:
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12. FMES AL
AuFHEEALTR ME(ZE—NF : BEB)BEARRES

HM2R Bl 1RE K =52 —0F : =) ALz
FrENeEmT

2015 2014
—E-RE SIS
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHAIT
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 2,000 2,076
Retirement scheme contributions RIKEFHEIMER 48 45
2,048 2,121
The emoluments fall within the following bands: BN FATEE -
2015 2014
—Z2-hF — T
Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,00078 7T 3 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and other employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company includes a profit of approximately
HK$1,699,000 (2014: loss of HK$6,099,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividends for the years ended 30 April 2015
(2014 Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to owners of the Company is
based on the following data:

REFEAR WEAALFHSESAT(BEESEREMES )X
FHEAENS - EAIARSEB AR 2 888 s /E ABER RS (E -
13. RATEEAELER
RARARMBHREREEZARAREBAREREEBARED
1,699,000/ 7T ( —Z— P04 : #5186,099,000/8 7T ) °
14. BRE

BV TR RNEE T -—AFNA=THLEFEZRE(Z
TP04E e

15. SREE

ARAREE ANEEEBREAREERBFETVRATER

2015 2014

—E-AEF = -mE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FA&T

(Restated)

(& E3)

Loss for the year from continuing operations AFEERBREEKER (3,502) (26,635)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation REEERIMCEEKEE (3,161) (7,947)
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company ARRIHEB AEIERFEEE (6,663) (34,582)
2015 2014

—®-IfF — ik

Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purposes of basic and diluted loss per share

R ESREAREEHIEZ TREMEFHH

5,859,860,900 5,859,860,900
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y¥ BERRE

The Group NEME
Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings held fixtures Utensils
for own use Leasehold and Motor and
carried at cost improvements equipment vehicles supplies Total
P5%:S A -
SERHER R HE ®E =AR
ZHELT MERE R®E RE HER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FA&T FAET FA&T FAT FAT
Cost 22N
At 1 May 2013 RZT—=FAA—H 15,926 6,154 1,795 4385 602 28,862
Additions NE - _ 65 - 7 72
Transfer from deposit paid for acquisition of EHEBEEWE  FE M
property, plant and equipment BRI zEe - - 13 - - 13
Exchange adjustments & 5 8 - 153 30 4 15 202
At 30 April 2014 and 1 May 2014 RZT—MFMA=+H
Fr—Z—NERA—H 15,926 6,307 1,903 4,389 624 29,149
Additions wNE - - 57 - - 57
Transfer to disposal group classified as held S E DI AR EHE
for sale (note 10) Z HEERI(HIEE0) - (6,201) (1,009) (515) (624) (8,349)
Exchange adjustments R _ _ _ _ _ _
At 30 April 2015 RZZE-—AFWA=+H 15,926 106 951 3,874 _ 20,857
Accumulated depreciation RENE
At 1 May 2013 R_F—=FHA—HA 811 5,490 1,351 3,611 506 11,769
Charge for the year REEZIH 442 344 184 534 36 1,540
Exchange adjustments RNk - 138 25 4 13 180
At 30 April 2014 and 1 May 2014 R-E-—MFNA=+H
k=E—NEHA—H 1,253 5,972 1,560 4,149 555 13,489
Charge for the year AFEZE 443 128 126 109 27 833
Transfer to disposal group classified as held —E#ZE DI AR EHE
for sale (note 10) Z HEERI(HIE0) - (6,017) (954) (384) (582) (7,937)
Exchange adjustments Rk _ _ _ _ _ _
At 30 April 2015 RZZE-—AFWA=+H 1,696 33 732 3,874 _ 6,385
Carrying amount REE
At 30 April 2015 R-ZE-AFMNA=+H 14,230 23 219 - - 14,472
At 30 April 2014 REZF-mFEMA=+H 14,673 335 343 240 69 15,660
The analysis of carrying amounts of leasehold land and buildings held for own use is as follows: BEERZHEL W EEFERES W T :
2015 2014
—E-AfF —ZT—-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
In Hong Kong: &
— medium-term leases — R EIFR A 14,230 14,673




17. LEASE PREMIUM FOR LAND

The Group’s interests in lease premium for land represent prepaid operating lease payments and
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17. T#HEE

AEERTIEE Z RERBENELEBONAREREES T

their carrying amount are analysed as follows: W
The Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —ET-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cost 2%
Brought forward R - 1,654
Disposal HeE - (1,654)
Carried forward e - -
Accumulated amortisation Rty
Brought forward Al - 228
Amortisation for the year N E - N
Written back on disposal R ] - (245)
Exchange adjustments [ 5, 8 - 6
Carried forward e - -
Net carrying amount SR FHE - -
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18, mEYE
The Group
rEE
2015 2014
—2-If ki
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At fair value BRATE
Balance at beginning of the year EA) 2 B 187,882 182,751
Fair value (loss)/gain ATFEEE) W (933) 4,850
Exchange adjustments VE 54 2 - 281
Balance at end of the year FREZEH 186,949 187,882
The analysis of carrying amounts of investment properties is as follows: BREVMECZRADFMT :
The Group
rEE
2015 2014
—®-IfF ki
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
In Hong Kong BB
— medium-term leases — AL 160,390 160,190
Outside Hong Kong B0
— medium-term leases — R EIFR A 26,559 27,692
186,949 187,882
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value model and are classified and accounted

for as investment properties.

The investment properties are leased to third parties and a related party under operating leases,
further details of which are disclosed in notes 37(a) and 38(a).

At 30 April 2015, the Group’s investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$81,900,000 (2014: HK$84,400,000) were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the

Group (note 32).

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy

18. REME (&)

AEEIA
ZERTE

EHERARHAARDES WA RIEERNIEERE

NAFEREAGFE EABRREMEAR-

BEYERBCEHERHLETE=FR—B@EAL #—
BB RE37(a) &238(a) B 25 o

RZE—HAFMNA=1+E AEEREMEERAES H
81,900,000/ 7T ( == —PU4F : 84,400,000/ L) EfEAR FTAEER

ZRITRE R (H5E32)

BANEZ AT EIE
() ATEEH

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s investment properties measured
at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs

Fair value as at

TERAZINZAKEREMEZ A FETINRE PRRE
BUHEREGE UHBEABBUBMELRERRATE
BRAEZ=ZRATFERE - BATEFESRZERIL
SEMTHERMAASRE I TBREREEHERETE

F-RMHE: BEERE - KB ABEBRAIRGEARBEE
FEBERRERMSZ REHRRE)FHEZATE.
FoRMHE: ERE-RBAREBAVREENFE B2
BERARE) AU ARERERTABEHABBAELL
FETABEEABEAETSEEZ GARE -

E-REE  ERERTABEGABBIBZATE.

Fair value measurements as at
30 April 2015 categorised into

REZEB-ZFNA=1TRAZAFEFEIBZER

30 April 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R=—Z—RF
A=+H
ZAFRE £F—& B =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHET FAT
The Group AEH
Recurring fair value measurement KEMATENE
Investment properties: REME -
— Commercial — HK —EE-FE 90,500 - - 90,500
— Commercial — PRC S E Sl 10,759 - - 10,759
— Residential — HK —FE-FH 69,890 - - 69,890
— Residential — Macau —{FE—BM 15,800 - - 15,800
186,949 - - 186,949




18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurements of investment properties (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs (Continued)
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18. REWE (&)
BEMEZATE;E (£)
() AFEER ()
F=EE FREATABRBARSH B2 ATE (£

Fair value measurements as at
30 April 2014 categorised into
R-ZB-—MEMA=+BATFEFESEZER

Fair value as at

30 April 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-B-—NF
A=+H2
ARE F—R -t =%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FHET FHAT
The Group rEE
Recurring fair value measurement KEMAFETE
Investment properties: WEWE -
— Commercial — HK —BE-—FB 90,000 - - 90,000
— Commercial — PRC el 11,392 - - 11,392
— Residential — HK —FE-FF 70,190 - - 70,190
— Residential — Macau —{FE—8M 16,300 - - 16,300
187,882 - - 187,882

During the year ended 30 April 2015, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfer into or out of Level 3 (2014:Nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they

occur.

All investment properties of the Group were revalued as at 30 April 2015. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, Asset Appraisal Limited, who have
among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience
in the location and category of properties being valued. The management of the Group has
discussions with the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the

valuation is performed at each interim and annual reporting date.

RBE-Z-AFNA=ZTHLFE F-REE_RKTAZMH
W TEFASEHE=FR -(ZT—0F: B)AEEZ
BRA/RBELERZ MEPPRERRERR 2 BRZ D TE -

AEENBREARATESARED S ENHERBENRSE
HRIEREE - MERE N EMTRRELETEERERA
AETT EFATEASMB SN E cBEHA T HEERRT
E R ERENEETHEILR RNERPHRFERSEER
EITHER AREEEECRASMI REERKRGEERS
2o
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurements of investment properties (Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

18. REME (&)

REWELATESE (B)
(i) BEE=RAFEHEZEH

Range of Relationship of unobservable
Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs input to fair value
TEHEREEA
fEE R TABE 2@ ARE BiEzEE FABEHIBEEAFEZBR
Investment properties in Hong Kong
REBZREM*
— Commercial properties Direct comparison Adjusted market price 7,078 — 45,000 The higher the price, the higher the fair value
- EEME approach (HK$/square feet) (2014: 6,077 — 25,843) BEIRHFAAFELS
BELEVE R TE —E A
(BT FAHR) 6,077 - 25,843)

— Residential properties

- EEYE

Investment properties in PRC

KRB 2R EYE

— Commercial property

-ERME

Investment properties in Macau

RIRPIZIREY

— Residential property

- EFEMHE

Direct comparison
approach

BRLBE

Direct comparison
approach

HERLBE

Direct comparison
approach

BRLLBE

Adjusted market price
(HK$/square feet)

KARZME
(BT FHR)

Adjusted market price
(RMB/square feet)

KRR TE
(BL/ FHR)

Adjusted market price
(HK$/square feet)

SR TE
(BT FHR)

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC is
determined using direct comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square feet basis, adjusted for a premium or discount
specific to the quality of the Group’s properties compared to recent sales on the comparable
transaction. The higher the price, the higher the fair value and a favourable adjustment on
the timing of comparable transactions will result in a higher fair value measurement.

9,325 - 27,850
(2014: 8,117 - 25,271)
—E-mE

8,117 —25,271)

32,004 — 39,000
(2014: 32,996 — 38,014)
(ZZ—m4 -
32,996 — 38,014)

7,798 — 8,503
(2014: 8,182 — 9,954)
(ZF—m%:
8,182 — 9,954)

The higher the price, the higher the fair value
BREEATERS

The higher the price, the higher the fair value
EBRESATELS

The higher the price, the higher the fair value
EREEAAFELES

UNES RFIRFERENEZ AVEDERERLBEE
B EE2ETAHEBYERET T REREEHEZARE
B BEfASERTEE N EaEdmE(BARHERS
LEBFRS) R R 2 - W E R RS AR A FERS R
RGEZHHEBELANAE HEEYAEMBZATFER

'%o



18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurements of investment properties (Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3 fair value measurements are
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18. REME (&)

REWEZNTPEHE (F)
(i) BHE=RAFEHEZEH (B)
FARAS=RATFEFTEEHNEHOT

as follows:

2015 2014
—EB-AEF —ZE-lmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET

Investment properties — Commercial - HK WEME-FE BB
At 1 May RAA—H 90,000 89,200
Fair value adjustment NEFAE 500 800
At 30 April RIUA=+H 90,500 90,000

Investment properties — Commercial - PRC WEME-—HE—F
At 1 May REA—A 11,392 11,111
Fair value adjustment N EFAE (633) -
Exchange adjustments Rk - 281
At 30 April RIMA=+H 10,759 11,392

Investment properties — Residential - HK WENME-—TE—FS
At 1 May REAR—AH 70,190 69,340
Fair value adjustment NTERAR (300) 850
At 30 April RUA=+H 69,890 70,190

Investment properties — Residential - Macau REYE—EE IR
At 1 May RAEA—H 16,300 13,100
Fair value adjustment AN EFAE (500) 3,200
At 30 April HUA=+H 15,800 16,300
186,949 187,882

Fair value adjustments of investment properties is recognised in the line item “change
in fair value of investment properties” on the face of consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. All the gains/(losses) recognised in profit or loss for the year arise
from the investment properties held at the end of the reporting period.

%xé%%Z Ir’f*@uﬂ% RearERERPUIRENEZ R
FEEE | IR NS Hﬁ*hﬁZ&ﬁ%%F@WFiz
FrEWE/(BR)ERED Ewu"

19. GOODWILL 19. BHE
The Group
TEE
2015 2014
—F-IfF ki
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cost 2%

Brought forward and carried forward HE R A 11,383 11,383

Accumulated impairment losses RERERR
Brought forward A 11,383 6,752
Impairment losses recognised EERIBEEE - 4,631
Carried forward it 11,383 11,383
Net carrying value REFE - -
Goodwill, being the expected future profitability, arising from the acquisition of pawn loans KAWEREERER CEE(AEHARKR 2B ) HIEA

business, which formed part of financial services business segment, had been fully impaired due
to the uncertain market conditions in previous years.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) was determined based on value-in-
use calculations. The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are those regarding the
discount rate, growth rate and budgeted gross margin and turnover during the period. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. The cash flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using a
growth rate of 3%. The growth rate used does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of
1% (2014: 11%).

As at 30 April 2014, the directors of the Company evaluated that the recoverable amount of
the CGU was lower than its carrying amount in view if persistent losses previously incurred and
management's expectations for the market development. As at 30 April 2014, the recoverable
amount of the CGU was HK$2,078,000. The management of the Company recognised an
impairment loss on goodwill of HK$4,631,000 in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 30 April 2014.

ERMBEBHEZ — 0 EREF 2 THEE T 5N B
A

ReEsBU((ReELEEM D2 RESBINRBERER
FTEEE FTEBRRDEHAZTRE ERERREEFN KL
NEXBAM WEHAEDENEREEREE M EZ A FHIE
iﬁ\%%g&iﬁ E'Jfﬁf/mi tﬂﬁiﬁﬁziﬂfmbiﬂﬁi%iiﬁi
SWHEH « PTE A 2 IR R R TS iﬂﬁi%igﬁ @AZ¥E§ZE
HFHERR - BERERFTREENN T S 11%) T LAY
IF o

RZE-—NENA=+H ARAERTHEARBERERTE
EBREBBEMSEEHE BeELBL 2 T IRE & EEN
HFAE RN NEFENA=1+H ReELSENZAIRES
E8/2,078,0008 T - AR R ERBERBE_T—NFNA=1
AIEFERGRE 2 ERE R 2 2R EE 18 /54,631,000 7T ©
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES 20. RME AR 2 REREWHE L RRIE
a) Investments in subsidiaries a) RHBARZRE
The Company
AT
2015 2014
—F-IfF ik
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Unlisted shares, at cost IEETRRAD - AR 136,072 136,072
Less: Impairment loss recognised in respect of the investments B BB A R E MR 2 R EE R
in subsidiaries (136,072) (136,072)
As determined by the directors of the Company, as at 30 April 2015 and 2014, no reversal BAQNTESET R-_Z—hERER-_Z—NEMA=+
of impairment loss was made for investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries because their B WEFR2EWNB AT ZRABORERER  RELX
recoverable amounts amounted to zero. Lo El & AT -
b) Amounts due from subsidiaries b) FEWHIE A BRIE
The Company
AT
2015 2014
—E-AF —ET—-lmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
At 30 April RmA=—+A 410,631 399,175
Less: Impairment loss recognised in respect W FEIENI S A B FRIBRER 2R EE 1B
of the amounts due from subsidiaries (146,273) (149,368)
264,358 249,807
The movements in the allowance for amounts due from subsidiaries during the year are as FERFEEWN B AR R IBERE Z #EHIT -
follows:
The Company
AAT
2015 2014
—E-1F —TomE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
At beginning of year F9) (149,368) (143,190)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment loss) recognised CRERRERERSE CRE/BE) 3,095 (6,178)
At end of year FER (146,273) (149,368)
As at 30 April 2015, based on the recoverability assessment performed by the directors of REZFE—RFMA=1H RERQEEEA#ETZAIKE
the Company, taking into account the persistent loss-making and the financial position of MERIEREERETE2EMBARBESYBBRURE
certain wholly-owned subsidiaries, provision for impairment loss of HK$146,273,000 (2014 BRI 1% - JRLE B 18 B 55146,273,0008 o ( — 2 — U4 -
HK$149,368,000) was recognised by crediting a reversal of impairment loss of HK$3,095,000 149,368,000/ C) NN HEZT—AFEWA=THALFEZ
(2014: charging an impairment loss of HK$6,178,000) to profit or loss for the year ended TBEEP AT A BRI EE5183,095,0008 0 ( — 2 — N4 : K
30 April 2015 so as to write down the amounts due from subsidiaries to their recoverable (B 186,178,000/ 7T ) 14 W37 LA S & WP /B8 12 B) SR IE
amounts. BEAKEISE-
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of FENHE AR KRB AEER 28 REETENRE -
repayment.
¢) Amounts due to subsidiaries o EAHEBARRE
Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of FER B AR FIEAEIER £ S REETERE -

repayment.



20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES
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20. RITBARCREREWMEQRRE (2)

(Continued)
d) The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally d TREHINIEHEXEEEE EEIEBZHBELAZ
affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group: =5
Percentage
of equity
Particulars of attributable to
Place of issued and the Company
incorporation paid up AATREEREESL Principal
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  activities
S AR S %
g B33 R BRTRBEREER HE BiE FEXK
E-Rapid Developments Limited BVI US$6,950,526 ordinary shares 100 —  Investment holding
HBRUMS LB h6,950,526 3 7T REER
VG Investment Assets Holdings Incorporated BVI 1 ordinary share 100 - Investment holding
RBREAHS —RE &R REER
Max Wide Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100 - Securities
EHHBAERRE e —REER ek
Vongroup Consumer Finance Corporation BVI 1 ordinary share 100 —  Investment holding
RBRTES —E Bk REER
Honning Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
REBRAF & — PR AR ME X
Golden Throne Holdings Limited BVI 1 ordinary share - 100 Technology & media and
related activities
RBRTES — g Ek By R LA R AERE B
Kamboat Chinese Cuisine Company Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$6,950,523 ordinary shares - 100 Food & beverage businesses
Non-voting deferred BHRER
Us$101 (note (i)
HBRETHE/ EiMR6950,53% T EEFE
e BERN101ET
(B 5EG)
ItRIEEEEARSEAT ([ RIER]) PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Financial services businesses
(note (ii)) (B &E(ii)) H AE#10,000,0007T SRRIEES
BRIEEZACRYINARAR([EAKRE]) PRC HK$23,000,000 - 100 Financial services businesses
(notes (ii) & (iii))
(B G R i) H 23,000,000 7T SRIRISERS
Easy Credit Limited Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares - 100 Financial services businesses
e 100,0008% & i@k ERREES
Centrix Properties Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
REBXFRAA 5 —RE &R IES S04
Unitech Properties Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
BEBEBRAAF e —REBER ESS
Win Harbour Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
FLFRA R A E i —MREmk ME X
Champmark Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
RBRRAT & — R mAR MEE
Allex Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
e —E &AL EES
Mica Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
i —MREmAR ME X
BlackPod Group Limited (formerly known as Twinway Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Technology & media and
Industries Limited) BB — R AR related activities

BT R IA R AR
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES 20. RBARIZREREWHELARRE (&)
(Continued)
Percentage
of equity
Particulars of attributable to
Place of issued and the Company
incorporation paid up AAREEREESL Principal
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  activities
R AR S &%
g BB ERTRBEREER HE BiE FEXK
United Luck Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
EHE AR A A B —REBRK WEED
Maxfine Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100 Property business
AEFRAF ) % 378 A% MEET
New Image Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
HEIEEARAA Ak —RE &R MEE
Jet Victory Corporation Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
RBERANAE B R m LIEE S
Dynasty Kingdom Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Property business
) — gk MEE
House2buy Properties Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1 ordinary share - 100  Property business
BEXSGMERRRAA HBELES/ EBRIET MEE
B
Vongroup Life Sciences Corporation BVI/Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100 Investment holding
RBRLME/ —REER REER
BE
Vongroup Financial Holdings Corporation BVI/Hong Kong US$1 ordinary share - 100 Investment holding
HERLES/ EBRIET REEK
EE
BReEMERERAR(ERSEM]) PRC HK$8,000,000 - 100 Food & beverage
(notes (i) & (ii) B 8,000,000 7T 8

(i) B i)

Notes: Pt

i) The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to attend or vote at general i) BRERZBERNEEZARS BRNFERRAGLNE L
meetings and no rights to receive any surplus assets in a return of capital in a winding up (other IR AR AR S AR EUR (B B AR 2 A B R A E (BRIF
than the nominal amount paid up or credited as fully paid on such shares, after the sum of £ 7100,000,000,000,0003 TTE B BB 75k T AL A E@BFHR
US$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the Company A& BRERGD 2 BB AR AEE 2 mEERIBRIN

in such winding-up).

i)y dbSIBE, BEiBIRE and BE S EEM are limited liability companies established in the PRC. i) JERIER - EEREREREEMARPBIKILZBRAT
i) Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC Law. i) AREFFEAEEMAIEBERE -
21. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21. RBEYE BERREBEITZES
The Group
TEE
2015 2014
—2-If -k
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Balance at beginning of year FH 4t 367 274
Additions NE - 106
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EREYE BB MR - (13)

Balance at end of year FIRZ 5% 367 367




22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
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22, AMEHERE

The Group
TEE
2015 2014
—Z-afF —ZE-lmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Unlisted investments: FETRE :
Club memberships, at cost (note (i)) TR R (M) 1,532 1,532
Unlisted equity investments, at cost (notes (i)&(ii) IEEMEBHFEE AR (M EEx) & (i) 10,350 10,350
11,882 11,882
Less: Impairment loss recognised W ERRREEE (9,430) (9,430)
2,452 2,452

Notes:

As at 30 April 2015, the Group’s available-for-sale investments with an aggregate net carrying amount
of HK$2,452,000 (2014: HK$2,452,000) were stated at cost less impairment because they did not have a
quoted market price in an active market and the range of reasonable fair value estimates was so significant
that the directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably.

The directors of the Company had reviewed the carrying amount of the unlisted equity investments, taking
into account the investees’ operating losses and the market conditions, impairment loss of approximately
HK$9,430,000 (2014: HK$9,430,000) has been recognised as at 30 April 2015. The directors of the Company
were of the opinion that the impairment was made based on their best estimates with reference to the
unaudited management information of the Newport.

Analysis of the Group’s unlisted equity investments:

RZE—AFEUA=1AH - BRFE /2,452,000 T(=ZF—0
F : 2,452,000/ 70 ) 2 A SR M AT 4 SR E TR AR E A
B AARSTENERTSNRE BABRFEMG 2HE
BR HEFRATRARTERSEZATE

AAREFEERWREELEHEBRTBRRECRAIEL
T 1% A RR B - R (8 5 18 499,430,0008 TT( =T — U4 ¢
9,430,000 70) B FTHAKREBE-T—AFNA=THILFE
ZABZHR R AN R E ERARETEEELENewport 2 K&
FRERERIRB RS MIEL

ARBIELMEFREZDN ¢

2015

—B-HF
Carrying
At cost Impairment amount
B WE AR E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiExT FEx
Honest Pro (Holdings) Limited (“Honest Pro”) 920 - 920
Newport Sterling Investments Limited (‘Newport”) 9,430 (9,430) -
10,350 (9,430) 920

2014

—E-mF
Carrying
At cost Impairment amount
BEAE AE EREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET FET
Honest Pro (Holdings) Limited (“Honest Pro”) 920 - 920
Newport Sterling Investments Limited (“Newport”) 9,430 (9,430) -
10,350 (9,430) 920

Honest Pro is a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability. The Group has 20% equity interest in
ordinary share capital in Honest Pro. The Group does not participate in policy-making processes, including
participation in decisions about dividends or other distributions of Honest Pro. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group does not exercise significant influence over the financial and
operating policies of Honest Pro. The investment is therefore accounted for under HKAS 39 as ‘Available-for-
sale Financial Assets’.

Newport is a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability. The Group has 19.09% equity interest in
ordinary share capital in Newport. During the year ended 30 April 2014, the Group recovered HK$5,000,000
from the return of investment by Newport.

Honest Pro/3 i 5 /i 5 22 B & st M A 32 2 B IR A 7] » 7% 5 @ #Honest

Prot

HAFHEAM Ik 2R EZBER I BE - AR FEEH

AR AR A5 5 20% A% 1 o R KK A LA BiHonest Pros) AR S
B AREEY

Honest Proz B # R 8 BHUR I MEB AL E N - SURERBE B4
AFEEARAAIHBEMBEE]

Newport & A 52 8 2 & BY B 51 Ak 7 2 B R A &) » 78 5= [ A Newport
BRI 19.00% - HE T —NEM A=+ AILFEE  KEE
£ B Newport2 1 & # &5 7 U2 215,000,000/ 7T ©
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23. INVENTORIES/FORFEITED COLLATERAL HELD FOR SALE 23. BE HEWRBUE RS
a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise: a) HMEUBRRRASIZEEEE:
The Group
TEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —Z-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Inventories — food & beverage products GE-ZHKER 2,128 3,871
Forfeited collateral held for sale (note) FEBFL WA R () 683 583
Note: Forfeited collateral held for sale include gold and jewellery. st FERIMEFRREES RIKE -
b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and included h) BRAMIRHAGEZEWERAZFEEREZIMN
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is as follows: T
The Group
TEE
2015 2014
—E-AEF —E=-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHAT
(Restated)
(& E3)
Carrying amount of inventories consumed CERETFEZERERE 122 329
24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 24. FEWRER
The Group
TEE
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Accounts receivable FEUER X - 1,756
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREHE - -
- 1,756
The general credit term granted by the Group to its customers ranges from 30 to 90 days. The REBBTERE 2 —REEHA0E0H - AEEHERER
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are RGBS ET - AERHEEETHEY - AEEE
reviewed regularly by management. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in R 2 — B BRI FE400)(0)
note 40(a)(i).
An aging analysis of accounts receivable as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: RImEER  BUIRRZRRATAT -
The Group
TEE
2015 2014
—Z-AHF —ZE-lmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within 30 days H308 A - 1,613
31 -190 days 31£90H - 15
91— 180 days 91£180H - 23
Over 180 days HBi@180H - 105

- 1,756




24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The aging analysis of accounts receivable that are not considered to be impaired is as follows:
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24. FEBURSK (47)
KIFE BIRMEZ BRARRZ RS HTIT -

The Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Neither past due nor impaired 3 58 BA SORE - 1,651
Past due but not impaired BEEEY ERE

1to 3 months past due - -
Over 3 months to 6 months past due - -
Over 6 months, but less than 1 year past due w AR B6(E A - B - 105
- 1,756

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

25. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO MONEY LENDING CUSTOMERS

A 4 360 B A5 L 2 B T B AT 00 40 288 2 R AR
BESEH.

CEaMETEREZBRERDEAREZZEARFLEZ
BURFAR BEETLR ERERCHARZSERED
RERE - RE A ZUWEERNEE  MAFERBARA
A B o AR B 3 A b A B A (R R R o

25. AREFEFERRBR

The Group
KEE

2015 2014
—E-RHF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Balance at beginning of year 4,388 4,784
Loans advanced 18,646 1,757
Repayment during the year (14,647) (2,180)
Exchange adjustments - 27
Balance at end of year 8,387 4,388

The loans bear interest rate ranging from 5.25% to 50.4% (2014: 5.25% to 50.4%) per annum and
are repayable according to the respective loan agreements which usually cover periods not more

than one year.

ZEERM A EF RN F5.25%250.4%( —F — U F 1 525%%
50.4%) WERES BERIBHER  H—RPOBRTEB—F -
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25. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO MONEY LENDING CUSTOMERS (Continued)

a) Maturity profile

The maturity profile of loans and advances to money lending customers at the end of the

25 MREFEFERRER (&)

a) FHER

RBEHRAREZFERRBER 2 BHBERIZINHE D

reporting period, based on the maturity dates, is as follows: L CENE
2015 2014
S i —F-mF
Unsecured Secured Unsecured
Pawn short- short- Pawn short-
loans term loans  term loan loans  term loans
receivable receivable receivable Total receivable receivable Total
HEER BRERAR BREER HEEH  EREER
W ERE EHER EHEX wEt RUERIE REEX “@Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FTERT FHET FA&T FAET
Due within 1 month or on demand 11| 3 /9 2| s iz 2 Rk (38 872 3,310 - 4,182 841 3,247 4,088
Due after 1 month but within 3 & A% E3EANEIE
months 5 - 4,200 4,205 - -
Due after 3 months 3ME A& 5IH - - - - - 300 300
877 3,310 4,200 8,387 841 3,547 4,388

As at 30 April 2015, no loans and advances to money lending customers were individually
determined to be impaired (2014: Nil).

b) Loans and advances to money lending customers that are not considered to be

impaired are as follows:

REZ-RAFMNA=+H HEARESPERREFIRERE
ERBE(=T—MF - #)e

b) REZEBEZOBREEFERRBRMOT :

2015 2014

—E-RF —Z2-mF

Unsecured Secured Unsecured

Pawn short- short- Pawn short-

loans term loans  term loan loans  term loans
receivable receivable receivable Total receivable receivable Total

HEER EREER RBREER HEER EUEER
EWERE BHER  EHEX wE EYRE EHEX st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET FHET FET THET
Neither past due nor impaired A 8 B ok R (B 193 3,310 4,200 7,703 132 3,247 3,379

Past due but not impaired B EE I ERE

Less than 1 month past due BEIEMEAR 13 - - 13 345 - 345
1to 3 months past due wENZ=3E A - - - - 7 - 7
Over 3 months past due B BB A3 1 A 671 - - 671 357 300 657
877 3,310 4,200 8,387 841 3,547 4,388

Loans and advances to money lending customers that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to recognised and creditworthy borrowers for whom there was no recent history of

default.

As at 30 April 2015, the Group held collateral, mainly land and buildings, gold and
jewellery, with aggregate value of approximately HK$1,084,000 (2014: HK$841,000) which
individually has value over the respective pawn loan receivable.

The secured short-term loan receivable of HK$4,200,000 was secured by certain residential
property and subsequently repaid after the end of the reporting period.

BEOHMTEREZAREEPERRBRATISREEREZH
HBERA - WFMLBL EIG RS

RITE—RAFNA=Z+H AEEREZERRFZATHIRE
F B RKE  EE41,084,00008 7T ( =T — 04 : 841,000/8
JT

)+ A& R A A BB AR I

g

ZNE A2

R EE-

FE U 5 0 5 B B 304, 200,00008 TT A TEEW KR RE
BREE IAREHE



26. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

27.

28.
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26. & AAERRAMERRR

The Group The Company
AEH PN

2015 2014 2015 2014
—EB-RF —T—mF —E-HF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET FAT
Prepayments FEfTRRX 487 1,255 10 -
Rental and other deposits (note (ii)) e REMRS (FIFG) 7,940 8,566 - -
Credit card receivables ERAREYRIE - 43 - -
Rental receivables RS 274 71 - -
Staff advances BT8R - 103 - -
Other receivables (note (i)) HoAh i WBR SR (P EE()) 23,532 26,377 - -
Less: Impairment o RE (2,720) (2,720) - -
Other receivables, net HAoth U AR FOFE 20,812 23,657 - -
29,513 33,695 10 -

Notes: BREE -

i) Included in other receivables is an amount of HK$18,568,000 (2014: HK$17,765,000) which represents
the right arising from termination of the available-for-sale investment in relation to Tian Da. The debtor
has agreed to transfer the title and ownership of a property located in the PRC, which has an estimated
market value of HK$22,493,000 at 30 April 2015 (2014: HK$25,316,000) based on a professional valuation
conducted by Asset Appraisal Limited, to the Group for the settlement of the debt owing to the Group. This
debt is bearing interest at the rate of 5% per annum. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
debt can be fully recoverable and no provision for impairment is considered necessary.

The impairment loss recognised was a provision for the long outstanding receivables for debtors and the
receivables were considered doubtful. The Group did no hold any collateral or other credit enhancement
over these balances.

i) Included in the balance of rental and other deposits was an amount of HK$7,754,000 (2014: HK$7,754,000)

as refundable good faith deposit paid for a proposed investment for which the due diligence is still in
progress. This deposit will be refundable subject to the result of due diligence.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

)

B E At fE U BR R BR 2 % 818,568,00075 7T ( = Z —PU4F : 17,765,000
BT RERIEEBERRZ THIBEREMEELZEM - BBAER
BRURPRZMEZMAERRERRARPRELEETERENSE
BARRZDMER T RENA=+TRETEEBE Gt HE
22,493,000/ 7T ( = —PU4F © 25,316,000/ 7T ) % T A E @ - DAER
ERANEMZ E o ILEFIR%T R AR RESRA  EF 28K
[« R A B R ERE -

EHRZAEBRAREBANKEARERBEFUAELNRE B
RWFRER BRI - AREY KRR ZSERFBE T AERRIEMD
ERER-

EREeREMIEEERAKR S 57,754,008 T( =T —NF :
7,754,000 ) DEM FRINEESERBE 2 ZHRE - ZIRERSE
BERE A T RIRIE -

27. ROFENBRIEZIESRE

Trading securities BEEES
The Group
EE
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At fair value: RATHE -
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong BB L TEFRE 31,124 32,815
Note: BisE -

The fair value of the listed securities are determined by reference to their quoted market closing bid prices
available on the relevant stock exchanges at the end of the reporting period.

DEPOSITS PLACED WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The amount represents deposits placed with financial institutions for trading securities, bearing
interest at the rates which ranged from 0.01% to 0.08% (2014: 0.01% to 0.08%) per annum for the
year.

LHREREZAFEDNBERRZEERREL R DM ZBTE
ANEEEE

28. ERBBEER

ZHIEEREEEFMERR SR E 2 175 W1R0.01%=
0.08% 2 FHEFFE(ZF—UF : 0.01%Z0.08%) °
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29. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

29. HERBITHER

The Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E-AfF —ZE-lmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHER 53,300 47,905
Time deposits with original maturities less than 3 months FREIE B DR3MEAR 2 EEFR 2,066 3,742
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial REEHBEMARRGEBEERERZEAS R
position and the consolidated statement of cash flows ReEAEEE 55,366 51,647
The Company
AT
2015 2014
—E-RfF —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Cash and bank balances B4 MIRITAE R 3,694 16,092
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position RN ERE2IZRE RRSEEEE 3,694 16,092
The interest rates on the cash at bank and deposits with banks ranged from 0% to 1.4% (2014: 0% FHRRBTTZIRE REFIR%E4%( T —IUE  0%21.7%) 2
to 1.7%) per annum. FREFR
30. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 30. FEMFERRX
The aging of the Group’s accounts payable is analysed as follows: REEENERZERSTWOT :
The Group
TEH
2015 2014
—E-RF —T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
0 - 30 days 0ZF30H - 413
31 -90 days 31£290H - 557
91 - 180 days 91£180H - 137
181 — 360 days 18123604 - 437
Over 360 days 83360 H - 449
- 1,993
The accounts payable is non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms. The BRBER AR EREEHR —#%A908  ERBERNREHRS

carrying amounts of the accounts payable at the end of the reporting period approximate to the EEEHEA T EREE-

fair values.



31. ACCRUALS AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED

32

31. B RERE KRS
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BE-Z-HFMA=

TRIEFE

The Group The Company
rEE AT
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mE —E-HF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET FER FA&T
Accruals f 6,679 6,424 114 -
Accrued staff benefits EETB IEA| 759 4,533 350 -
Rental and other deposits received Bl e kE ML S 1,473 1,828 - -
VAT and other tax payables FEFHIGER R H MR 8 479 - -
Other payables H b e IR 153 77 27 27
9,072 13,341 491 27
Except for rental and other deposits received, all of the accruals and deposits received are BAHS REMDBIRE N B BT RIE R WIR S FEEA AT A
expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand. —ERBNHERAEBAKEEKERE -
BANK BORROWINGS 32. RITEE
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank borrowings is as follows: SRITIEESREMEZSTOT ¢
The Group
rEE
2015 2014
—ZE-AfF —ET-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Current liabilities nRBEE
Portion of term loans from banks due for repayment within one year —FERIEEEMETRMEREEEGERZRITEDS
which contain a repayment on demand clause B RERD 1,967 1,935
Portion of term loans from banks due for repayment after one year which —fF{& 3| B EE & F [ G R E R EBERZBITE
contain a repayment on demand clause HRE R D 32,069 34,047
Total Fee 34,036 35,982
As at 30 April 2015, total interest-bearing bank borrowings were due for repayment as follows: R-ZE—FRFENMA=+0 FHESZHEHRTEEEENT :
The Group
EE
2015 2014
—ZE-hfF —ZT-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Portion of term loans from banks due for repayment —FREHEBZRITEHERDS
within one year 1,967 1,935
Term loans due for repayment after one year (note) —FHHEECEHER(ME)
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR 1,967 1,935
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBERFR 6,168 5,805
After 5 years HF% 23,934 26,307
32,069 34,047
34,036 35,982
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as stipulated in the respective loan agreements. Mz . ZEIHEEEARESERGEMAZEEAHER -
Bank borrowings of HK$16,341,000 as at 30 April 2015 (2014: HK$17,341,000) were secured by RZZT—HFMA =18 ZRITEE16,341,0008 (=T — Y
certain investment properties with fair values of HK$43,400,000 (2014: HK$46,400,000). The 117,341,000 7T ) A & F 143,400,000 7o ( = F — [0 4 -
interest is charged at 0.7% per annum over 1-month HIBOR, and capped at 2.5% per annum 46,400,000870) 2 A TR EMEERF - —T—WFER=_F—A

below prime rate for both years 2014 and 2015.

B i FR ERAZREBFER25E

FREZHSHR—EAFTBRITRERSMN07E 2 FFIRU
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32.

33.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Bank borrowings of HK$5,015,000 as at 30 April 2015 (2014: HK$5,289,000) were secured by
certain investment properties with fair values of HK$15,500,000 (2014:HK$16,000,000). Interest is
charged at 1.25% per annum over 3-month HIBOR, and capped at 2.75% per annum below prime
rate for both years 2014 and 2015.

Bank borrowings of HK$6,559,000 as at 30 April 2015 (2014: HK$6,903,000) were secured by
certain investment properties with fair values of HK$23,000,000 (2014: HK$22,000,000). The
interest is charged at 1.5% per annum over 3-months HIBOR, and capped at 2.5% per annum
below prime rate for both years 2014 and 2015.

The balance of bank borrowing of HK$6,121,000 as at 30 April 2015 (2014:HK$6,449,000) were
secured by the Group’s leasehold land and buildings held for own use carried at cost (note 16)
with net carrying amount of HK$14,230,000 (2014: HK$14,673,000). The interest is charged at
1.25% per annum over 3-month HIBOR, and capped at 2.75% per annum below prime rate for
both years 2014 and 2015.

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

a) Current taxation in the statement of financial position

32.

33.

RITEE (&)

RZT—AFMA=+82ZRTEES5015000F (=T —M0
£ 15,289,000/ 7T ) A & F 1E15,500,00078 ;w( = T — 0 4 :
16,000,000/ 7C) 2 & THREMEERR - —T—NFR=_FT—F
FRF 2T BHR=E A BERITREFSIN25E 2 FFHI
B mF R ERARESNRRM2.75

RZT—AFMA =18 ZRTEE6559,0008 (=T —M0
1 6,903,00078 7T ) BA & F 1823,000,00078 ;L( = T — 0 4 :
22,000,000/87C) 2 & TIREMEEER - —T—NFR=-FT—F
FMFZFBIE=(E A BEAERITRERSINSEZ FHEY
H - R R R AREEFER25E -

RZTE—AFMA=1+HBZRITEEE6,121,0008T(=F
—PU%F 16,449,000/ 7T ) T3 LA 52 & BR EFE 14,230,000/ 70 (=%
—PU4F : 14,673,000 70 ) 2 AR AT ER (EE A 2 T E T 48
FEEE(HE16) —T—ER-T—RAFMF 2 F 89K —
BABBRITRERSIM2BEZFHEWRE MEMELRA
HEEFER2.75E ©

BMBRRREN 2 FTEH
a) BBRREZ5ZNHBIE

The Group
TEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
At beginning of the year E7]) 23,547 22,079
Provision for the year NEERE
— PRCEIT - B EFTISRL M 201
— PRCLAT - R+ i ER - 628
11 829
Tax paid B EIE
~ PRCEIT - R EER (98) (17)
Tax refund BiREIA
— Hong Kong Profits Tax - BANEH - 22
Under provision in prior year BAEFEREBETR
~ PRCEIT - B R FTER - 74
Exchange adjustments FE 5 A% - 560
Transfer to a disposal group held for sale (note 10) ERERHENE 2 HEER (MEE10) (22,661) -
At end of the year FXR 829 23,547
b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: h) CRIBELHBEE (AE):
Fair value
Accelerated change in
tax investment
depreciation properties Total
hnE REBRENEZ
BENE AFEEDH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHT
At 1 May 2013 RZZ—=FH1A—H - - -
Charged to profit or loss (note 9(a)) PRE =R (MEE9()) - (788) (788)
At 30 April 2014 and 1 May 2014 RZE-—MEFENA=+HRK
—ZE—MmFERA—HB - (788) (788)
Credited to profit or loss (note 9(a)) FFABE (MIFE9()) - 102 102
At 30 April 2015 R-ZF-RFWA=+A - (686) (686)

Deferred tax assets are to be recognised for the carryforward of unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of HK$169,559,000
(2014: HK$164,855,000). The unrecognised tax losses, mainly attributable to Hong Kong
companies, can be carried forward indefinitely.

RERBEETIRA S 2 RSB IAEE T IAER - AR
BARKERBOE T BEEHARBARIABRE RR -

N 82 [E 30 K HE R B 8169,559,000/8 TR A S 18 2 BT R BB B
(ZZ—F : 164,855,0008 7T ) RERZHIEBEFEFERESE
AR ATEER B -
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34.

35.
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INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued) 33. IR KR 2SN ZFEH (&)
¢) Withholding tax (¢ FEHH
Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in REFRCEMERE BT N\F—A—H& FEK
respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred B2 R BT R EUE A 9 R I BB TEINE - AR ANEE
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of AR O R R R BE R EENY RSk TE
temporary differences attributable to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting e M ES BB AR RESF BN ERESE
to HK$1,309,000 (2014: HK$1,309,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the 1,309,000/8 70 ( = Z — 04 : 1,309,000/ 7T ) Rér A B R ER
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will VB R FR A B -
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
SHARE CAPITAL 34, BA
The Company
NG|
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE-mF
Number of shares HK$’000 Number of shares HK$'000
RHEE FHER RHEE FHAT
Authorised: VETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each SREE0.001ETZ R 200,000,000,000 200,000 200,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE -
At beginning and end of the year RERER 5,859,860,900 5,860 5,859,860,900 5,860
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time LBRBEAEABREDRARERZEKE  WHERAARRREA
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank CLREBERBRHE—ZE -ALTBREAARFNBEEZBRSE
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. AL o
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. B REET &

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) effective from 30
September 2011 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the New Scheme
include the Company’s directors, including non-executive directors, employees of the Group,
any other groups or classes of suppliers, customers, subcontractors or agents of the Group and
the Company’s shareholders determined by the directors as having contributed or who may
contribute to the development and growth of the Group. The Scheme unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, remains in force for 10 years from that effective date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted under
the New Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the New Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholder’s approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to any director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the official closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the date of offer,
upon the payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. An option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the New Scheme at any time during the period
commencing from the date on which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and
expiring on a date to be notified by the directors to each grantee, which shall not be more than
10 years from the date on which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted. There is no
minimum holding period before an option may be exercised.

ARRHA-F——FNA=+ B RRNH BB H A
B EERHAEEEBELER A BER2BEFELEDR
Bl HtE A ER2EEREARBAZER(REFNTE
F)AKEESR AKEEAEMAR AR 2 HER  BE -
DEERARIER UREERRBER ARG HAEEERER
RBREBERZARRIRR - RIFWABITHEHSER] B RIFHE
#EER RSBt FR—EAR -

RIEFETE] REEER RS RITEZBRERITERS R
2Bty ERAASER AR BEEFRREE BTN 210% £ E
ToERGR A S EERDEERR BB R AT H
T LR ABA R REEMR RS BITRN.21% - BIMZHEB
PR ER 2 BB AR AR RN & R AR SR AL

RTPEMNES TRARAAATEIBERR SRS 2 EAHE
AL ZBBBE BAEEREARNR ZBIIFNTESIIE UL
SN HFMER + B A BER T AR AT ERRIBLIFNTE
FUREZEIBHEALZBEE 2 EEBBARREEMR
RO ETRMZ0I%RAEREAR AR LBREE A AQE
Bt 2 B 77 i B 5 E ) #8385,000,00008 7T - AERIAERRAE
AR

EEAREROBREZ2EE AR -+ - ARXNREM
BLZAERE BRARES BRERRBR SR RER
REERA(BEFAESARA) BRI BERRE 8 EKT
& AR BRI B mBRERR AR REAE A+
FoBERETENTEKESFHR
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35.

36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 35. B E (&)
The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than BREZTEERBESET  BTBERTIERSE « ()Y
the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant BRES AR A TRMARE R 2 WM E : (AR RRNONEE
of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for REUEREZEBAABARSBEBRRM2 FHKTE  Rii)R
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the AR 2 EE °
Company’s shares.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ BRETER TRHRAEAZTAREIRRRAG LREZEF R
meetings. No share options under the New Scheme were granted and outstanding during the HEZZ—AGFER-T-—NFUA=THIFE HEERED
years ended 30 April 2015 and 2014. RIEFTET B L B RATHE ©
RESERVES 36. f#fE
The Group NEM
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s AEBGERESHEKE DNV EAR HESNGE R
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the BEE - ANRARERERIAENBORFEN RFLZEET BT
changes of the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning and the end AN
of the year are set out below:
The Company YN
Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
&N
B LE{E 25
HE & -] st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
(note a) (note b)
(P &Ea) (Ft5Eh)
At 1 May 2013 R-_ZE—=FHHA—H 540,586 262 (290,837) 250,011
Loss for the year AEEEE - - (6,099) (6,099)
At 30 April 2014 and 1 May 2014 RZZE—mMFEA=+HR
—Z—NERA—H 540,586 262 (296,936) 243,912
Profit for the year KEEREF - - 1,699 1,699
At 30 April 2015 R-Z—-RFMA=1+H 540,586 262 (295,237) 245,611

The Company’s reserves as at 30 April 2015 available for distribution to owners of the Company
as calculated under the provision of the Companies Law of Cayman Islands are approximately
HK$245,611,000 (2014: HK$243,912,000).

Nature and purpose of reserves

a) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in
share premium account are distributable to shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

b) Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the amount by which the Company’s issued
share capital has been diminished on the cancellation of the shares purchased. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the capital redemption reserve may be applied
by the Company in paying up its unissued shares to be allocated to shareholders of the
Company as fully-paid bonus shares.

RRARARZE—RAFNA=+BREFNSHERREZ BTN
FTERAI YR T ARQBHEE A Z REL H245,611,0008T( =F
— P94 243,912,000/ 7T) °

EEEERAR
a) RiraE

BnaBRzEAXHASHERAREMAE RERESHSE
REAVE BRINVEBERZESA DR TARARR  HEARAE
HEEREERRERSREAANERENEEEREERD
RS 2 (BT

R &N

BAEOREDARFBSHTRAERETHEBERG M
B2 2B - RIEFENEDRE  ARE R HERAKER G
BERARIAARRARBRRED B2 RETRG (EREHRRK
FRALR



36. RESERVES (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

J

d

Statutory surplus reserve

According to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries’ articles of association, the PRC company is
required to transfer 10% of its net profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of the
statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of the PRC company’s registered capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of a
dividend to the shareholders.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up previous years’ losses, if any, and may
be converted into capital in proportion to their existing shareholdings, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Exchange translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(v).

37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

a)

b)

As lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties (note 18) under operating lease
arrangements, typically with leases negotiated for terms of two years. The terms of the
leases generally also require the lessee to pay security deposit.

At 30 April 2015, the Group had total future minimum lease payments receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases with lessees falling due as follows:
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36. f#fE (&)

REHERAR (B
o EEEBERE

BREARR ZPENB AR EBKERMAR FEIRMBE
AR R Bl & et 4R B R AR I 2 10% % AR AL R AR
BB R - EATARREERENTREAREMERZ
50%E5 - AR BRBFHE - FERT - BREZREBELEN
DIRAE TR Z ATHETT

AERBEEITRERBUEFEEZBIEB(WA) YARE
BERLOIBEEBABEERARA EEIRE ZEBRT
1FOREMEARZ25% -

d) [EREE

EXRERELRBBINEB M BREMELZME
SN o AR R BRI R 2() T B 5 BUR R 12

37. REBNRH

a) fERHAEA

AEERBLEEOLELAEREYE (H5E18) — KA
HAME - AHER—RIREREBAXZ N ERZE -

REZE-—RAFNA=+H AEEBETATREELERON
TFIEH B AT UREUR 2R FE M B AR AR 40 OB AR -

The Group
EE

2015 2014
—2-AF —E—{F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Within one year —&FR 5,743 2,500
In the second to fifth year, inclusive MERF(BIZERWE) 3,704 82
9,447 2,582

As lessee

At 30 April 2015, the Group had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

b) fEREBEA

REZE-—RAFNA=+H AEERTAREHEEBRLO 2R
EREGER T IR BIE] -

The Group
TEE

2015 2014
—F-IfF ik
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —FR 422 6,973
In the second to fifth year, inclusive MEAF(BEEREMRSF) - 15,091
422 22,064

The Group leased restaurant premises and offices under non-cancellable operating lease
arrangements with lease terms ranging from two to six years.

ARBRETTHHEEEORFREDENKIALE B
NEMEAF -
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a) In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions and balances with its related parties
during the year:

Legal fees and corporate secretarial service fees
(note (i)
Rental income (note (ii)&(iii))

BMERRARNERS
B A (B EEG)
TR W A (B BE() B (iii))

Notes:

ih)

The legal fees were charged for legal services rendered by a law firm, a partner of which is a close
relative of a director, Mr. Vong Tat leong David. The corporate secretarial service fees were charged for
services rendered by a corporate secretarial firm which is controlled by a close relative of a director,
Mr. Vong Tat leong David.

The amount is unsecured, interest free and due on presentation.

The rental income was received from a company, which is controlled by a close relative of a director,
Mr. Vong Tat leong David.

The amount is unsecured, interest free and due on presentation.
The Group leases out an investment property to a related party in note (ii) above under an operating
lease arrangement for a term of three years. The terms of the lease require the lessee to pay a

security deposit.

As 30 April 2015, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating lease with lessee falling due as follows:

38. BEALTRS

a)

BRZEFHHR A M ARENR S REHRIN AEH
RAFENEEANTHRITUATR S RS

Related
As at 30 April expenses/(income)
MROA=+H BEAEAX(BA)
Year ended 30 April
BEWNA=1+HILEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-REF ZE e —E-HE —E—lF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FTAET FET
- - 838 551
- - (481) (445)
B &

i)

AKEEH - HEMEBM( AP —ABARESEES LS
BRE ARG EMER - ARNEREZERIHMEES
BISRSE DORAENZ ARWE R RPRERBS ST -
ZHARBER 2B RABEN

AEWARBEEEEG AL ZARMEH 2R

ZRBERRIER - B REVEREA
AEBRBLERO A B EPERT 2 —2HEA L HE A
REWE BHR=F -HOBKESABAZINERRS -

RIB-AFEA=TR  AEBERENATHBHL LN TIEE
B AT ER SR R M A IR AR A OB MR

The Group
@

2015 2014
— —ZT—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Within one year —&ER 484 _
In the second to fifth year, inclusive MERF(BEERME) - -

484 -




38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

b)

Compensation of key management personnel

The emoluments of directors and other key management personnel during the year are as
follows:
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38. BEALRSE (&)

b)

TREBARZHIE

FREERAMEIBEEABZHE0T

The Group
rEEH
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Short term employee benefits HHREEREF 2,050 13,350

39. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which are described in note
2, management has made certain key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, as discussed below.

i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management
will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

i) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset,
which requires significant judgement relating to the level of revenue and the amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
revenue and operating costs. Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of the assets and could result in additional impairment
charge or reversal of impairment in future periods.

iii)  Estimated fair value of investment properties

The investment properties were revalued at the end of the reporting period by
reference to comparable market transactions by independent qualified valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making the judgment, the Group
considers information from current prices in an active market for similar properties
and uses assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period.

39. BEREFHhE RHE

a)

THEBAME 2 EERR

REAAREEFBOR(RIINME2) 28R+ EEER
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iif)
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M- BB RRERE

AEAREEEAELAFEREEXALEEAEESR
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Btz E¥RERZEERERREZ HATMRE -
T 75 B UK T A 2 B (R B R I - AR SR LA
RAEREERYIRESRIEAERGE  BRERES
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TR R Z R °
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39. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

iv) Impairment of accounts receivables, loans and advances to money lending customers
and other receivables

The Group maintains impairment allowance for doubtful accounts based upon an
evaluation of the recoverability of the accounts receivable, loans and advances to
money leading customers and other receivables, where applicable, at the end of each
reporting period. The estimates are based on the aging of the accounts receivable,
loans and advances to money lending customers and others receivable balances and
the historical write-off experience, net of recoveries. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, additional impairment allowance may be required.

v)  Allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews its inventories at the end of the each reporting
period and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer marketable or suitable for use in production. Management estimates
the net realisable value for such items based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-
product basis at the end of each reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
items.

vi)  Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment
of certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions
and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax legislation. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and tax losses only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the deferred tax assets can be utilised. As a result, management’s judgement
is required to assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting period.

The current taxation for the year ended 30 April 2015 was income tax credit of
HK$61,000 (2014: income tax charge of HK$1,691,000). The carrying amount of
deferred tax liabilities and tax payable as at 30 April 2015 were HK$686,000 (2014:
HK$788,000) and HK$829,000 (2014: HK$23,547,000) respectively.

b) (Critical accounting judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies

i) Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are stated at cost less impairment. Judgment is required
when determining whether an impairment is existed. In making this judgment,
historical data and factors such as industry and sector performance and financial
information regarding the investee and certain specific conditions surrounding the
transactions giving rise to the investments are taken into account.

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

a) Financial risk factors

The Group and the Company have exposure to the credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
risk, currency risk and equity price risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

i) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual
obligation resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy
of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

39. EREFHETTRHE (&)

a)

b)
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JL)e°
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

i)

i)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of other receivables and loans and advances to money lending customers, in
order to minimise risk, the management has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. With respect to other
receivables and loans and advances to money lending customers, credit evaluations
of debtors’ financial position and condition are performed on each and every major
debtor periodically. These evaluations focus on the debtor’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the debtor as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
debtor operates. The Group does not require collateral in respect of other receivables.
In respect of pawn loan receivables, loans and advances to money lending customers,
the Group held collateral, mainly land and buildings, gold and jewellery, for securing
the debts. Debts are usually due within 30-90 days from the date of grant or as agreed
in the respective agreement. The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
the amounts due from subsidiaries as referred to in note 20(b). In addition, the
management of the Group and the Company review the recoverable amount of
each individual debts at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group and the Company’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

In respect of other receivables, loans and advances to money lending customers, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each debtor. The default risk of the industry and country in which debtors operate
also has an influence on credit risk. At the end of the reporting period, other than the
refundable deposit of HK$7,754,000 (2014: HK$7,754,000) (note 26(ii)), other receivable
of HK$18,568,000 (2014: HK$ 17,765,000) (note 26(i)) and the secured short-term loan
receivable of HK$4,200,000 (2014: Nil) (note 25(b)), the Group has no other significant
concentrations of credit risk which individual balance does not exceed 10% of the total
other receivables, loans and advances to money lending customers at the end of the
reporting period.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for its own cash
management, including the short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demand, subject to board approval. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. The Group relies on bank
borrowings as a significant source of liquidity.

A EEARAT FHH2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015
BE-Z-AFNA=1+HLEE

40. BEREBREEBERBE (£)

a) H¥EREZ (&)

]

i)

FEAR

RREEMERER R AREEFERRBRTELZ
B ERERA-EEERR FEERMARZE
BEERER - sLEMEUERR R AMES P ER RN
ME  ERHEETZAEBEALETHBIRRRGEZEER
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) 40. BIBEREBEEBERBK (£)
a) Financial risk factors (Continued) a) H¥EREZ (&)
ji)  Liquidity risk (Continued) i) wEEemE ()
The following liquidity risk tables set out the remaining contractual maturities at the UNTZRBECRBRREGUAGHNRUR 2R RE
end of the reporting period of the Group’s and Company’s financial liabilities based BEEZAREERARNRMBABRBRERARZBET
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using EHER (BIEZRE OF = (A ZE IR ) R8RS 5
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting RZBRHEFEZFEMAR) URAEERAAR
period) and the earliest date the Group and Company can be required to pay: ARERNRz&FHE
The Group REME
More than More than Total
Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—FERH HiB—F BIBWE BHRREEE REE
RER ERMER BEREFR REeERE FEE-C)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FExT FHET FExT FET
2015 —EB—RF
Accruals FERT IR 6,679 - - 6,679 6,679
Accrued staff benefits FERTE TEA 759 - - 759 759
Other payables S ANE ] 153 - - 153 153
Bank borrowings RITEE 34,036 - - 34,036 34,036
41,627 - - 41,627 41,627
More than More than Total
Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—F A il —F BB F ARIRAE 8RE(E
BEK ERMERA EREFR RBens 4z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FHET FAET
2014 —E-mE
Accounts payable FERERRR 1,993 - - 1,993 1,993
Accruals FEFHRIE 6,424 - - 6,424 6,424
Accrued staff benefits EFtE TR 4,533 - - 4,533 4,533
Other payables H b fER RIE 77 - - 77 77
Bank borrowings wITEE 35,982 - - 35,982 35,982
49,009 - - 49,009 49,009
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) 40. BIBEREBEEBERBK (£)
Financial risk factors (Continued) a) H¥EREZ (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) i) wEEemE ()
The Company RAF
More than More than Total
Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—FRsk BBE—F BEME BRRER IREE
RER ERMER BEREFR REeERE BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAET FHERT TART FHERT FTAERT
2015 —E-RHEF
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTF B A B 2A 16,100 - - 16,100 16,100
Other payables Hb e FRIB 491 - - 491 491
16,591 - - 16,591 16,591
More than More than Total
Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—F Rk BiR—F BB F ARIREEE BREE
RER ERMEA BEREFR REmRE 4z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FHET THET FET
2014 —E-IF
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE TR B A B RUE 16,100 - - 16,100 16,100
Other payables HAth E A B 27 - - 27 27
16,127 - - 16,127 16,127
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “within 1 MBI B RERERZRTEEE LM A DT
year or on demand” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 30 April 2015, the P A —FRARREK | ZEBEBER- R_ZE—AF
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to approximately MAZ=+H ZFRITEEZLIREEL £34,036,000
HK$34,036,000 (2014: HK$35,982,000). Taking into account of the Group’s financial FEIT(ZZ—PU4F : 35,982,000/8 7T ) ° &Lt A EE 7 Bt
position, the directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable that the banks AR AARESRARIT AT EREREESRAD
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors BER AAAESEY RERTEEBREERG
of the Company believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with SEHATEEERAMREES - A BESLER
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, as follows. However, BESHRMBRRZER —ERALBSAERERE
in accordance with Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements- BEICEHER B TEZSRTERCEAS
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand mBEE-
Clause, all such bank loans have been classified as current liabilities.
Maturity analysis — Term loans subject to a repayment on demand clause based on RO — BREBRIGERIBEBFTERBERZ EH
scheduled repayments B
The Group KEE
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but Total
Within less than less than More than  undiscounted
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow
—FRmk BBE—F BEME BHRER IREE
RER BRBMEFER BREER ReRE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
30 April 2015 —E-RFWMA=+H 2,418 2,418 7,253 25,772 37,861
30 April 2014 —E—WOFmA=+H 2,414 2,414 7,243 28,225 40,296
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

iii) Interest-rate risk

Except for certain interest-bearing bank deposits, deposits placed with financial
institutions, loans and advances to money lending customers and bank borrowings the
Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
Bank deposits, deposits placed with financial institutions and bank borrowings issued
at variable rates expose the Group and the Company to cash flow interest-rate risk.
The other receivables and loans and advances to money lending customers issued at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Details of the Group’s bank
borrowings have been disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to
interest risks.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar
borrowings.

i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s borrowings at
the end of the reporting period:

40. BEREBREEBERBE (£)

a) H¥EREZ (&)

i) FEmE

BRETHERITEN SREBEETX ARERPER
RBFRBTERN AEBTESRFSEERR
B AEEZRARSERSREAR LB RTISH
R EH RITFER SRBBERLIREDH M X
ZRITEEEAEEARARAALYREREN KRR -
Hib U ER AR RBEEMRABREEP L ZERK
RBFEAEEBMERSRENERR - BREAEER
TEEZ FBERFBmERME32E -

4 85 0 48 3T 57 4 () S 8 B DA S 0 T L 2 SR R
e
AEBZRERENEAREEEFRARE BT
AR 2 BRI ER BRI -

) REER

TRAJIAEBEERBEHRZFIRER -

The Group
REE
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-EF

Effective Effective

interest interest

rates rates

BBRFI= BRI
HK$’000 HK$'000
% TET % FHET

Variable rate borrowings: BEFEEE

Bank borrowings RITEE 0.9-2.5 34,036 0.9-2.5 35,982

At 30 April 2015, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates would increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax and
accumulated losses by approximately HK$284,000 (2014: HK$300,000).

i) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the end of the next annual reporting period.

RZFE—RAFWNA=1B At HEEEREE
0/ A 1001E E B 3 0, D A SR B R B A&
18k 2 EE1E%7284,000%8 7T (ZZF — U4 : 300,000
L)

i) BREREDT

ERBBESH BRI ERBEBRLRED
e - AR BB 2 FATA BT AY
FIE AR - 5100EE % 2 8 MaA L 1B R
EHERBNET—BEEREDRARAE
R288-
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) 40. BBEBEREBERBE (&)
a) Financial risk factors (Continued) a) H¥EREZ (&)
iv)  Currency risk iv) EE
The Group’s operations are mainly in Hong Kong and PRC. Entities within the Group REEZEBFTECEEBRPE - ANEEET 2 HEM
are exposed to foreign exchange risk from future commercial transactions and AZZHNERM  REHIFAEE 2 EEETEZH
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is not the ERERSGLEREELBE-

entity’s functional currency.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. It manages its ANEE BRI EINEERER - HEY B BINEER 2
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates BB LT HIINE RS - WG E BT ERFR] R HHNE
and will consider entering into forward foreign contracts to reduce the exposure should A L LAREE R -

the need arise.

i) Exposure to currency risk ) EAXEERE
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of the reporting TRALAEERRERRIZEHEBNHEEY
period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in LWAONEBFEZEBREERABMEAZEE
a currency other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. Bk -EELRBZEEEEAARB(TARE]D
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Renminbi (‘RMB”) and United RET(ET] ARRARBERRLTEEHEKR
States Dollars (“US$”). The Company is not exposed to material currency risk at the HERE -

end of the reporting period.

The Group
REH
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in HK$’000)

EH 2z SRR (LT BT HR)

2015 2014
—E-HE —T—mEF
RMB Us$ RMB Us$
ARM EJ AR E
Accounts receivable FEHBR K - - - 1,560
Cash and bank balances R RIBITHES 20,199 5,837 20,576 5,843
Deposits placed with financial institutions SREET R 1,076 - 1,053 -
Overall exposure arising from recognised assets SR EENBERMEL ZE
and liabilities [l 21,275 5,837 21,629 7,403
i) Sensitivity analysis i) BREESN
The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group’s loss after TRBETRINBEIRANEB AT EARR 250
tax (and accumulated losses) in response to reasonably possible changes in the MERZABAEEE MSAEERBEER
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of (REFREER)HBRZHHES -

the reporting period.

2015 2014

—E-hF —T-F
Decrease/ Decrease/
Increase/ (increase) Increase/ (increase)
(decrease) on loss after (decrease) on loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated
rate losses rate losses
BB EEBER BREL B R
SER 2RER HNEEE 3 2iEEE
EFHA(TRE) R GEN) EFACTRE) md /GEm)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
RMB AR 5% 888 5% 903

(5%) (888) (5%) (903)
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AENA=+RHILEEE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

iv)  Currency risk (Continued)

v)

i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the end of the annual reporting period and had
been applied to the Group’s exposure to currency risk for both derivative and
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in foreign exchange rate over the period until the end of the next annual
reporting period. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the
Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar would be materially unaffected
by any changes in movement in value of the United States dollar against other
currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group entities’ loss after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies, translated into Hong
Kong dollar at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity investments of
trading securities classified as equity investments at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange. Decisions to
buy or sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the performance of
individual securities compared to that of the stock market index and other industry
indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs.

At 30 April 2015, it is estimated that an increase/(decrease) of 5% (2014: 5%) in the
relevant stock market index (for listed investments), with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated
losses) as follows:

40. BEREBREEBERBE (£)

a) BEEBEZE (&)
) EXmEE (&)
i) BREN (&)

BES N BRI EESABEBRERE
ﬁ%ﬂ'l%%%ﬁ%l%%ﬁ%f&Zwi&#
PIABBT A SEER T AR BER )
RFIR)RETE -

Gz BEHEE RN EINEEXTRHAET —
1I¢E%ﬁ%,ﬁﬁ3kﬂ BRI EE Bk E - TR
RETHEXTH BMEERERARE LT
ELRAEMER 2 BEAFNEZHZE - LRIIR

AMEREAEASGHERZBBEREN/B
BRASDREER RN IRERRBIEFIRZER

EE'JR?‘%‘EX/%%EJFEZHﬂ’EZi Gt E - —T—N
DHTIRAAE R B AE 7T o
v RAEREER
$EIITWA\3F1EPM 5']915\2 TEREFRECZEER
BHMAZI(EE

AEEZ EFHEFRENBIM LT BERHEERR
ERZREDERNEGAERERESBHEREEDS
BERAEMTEERZRANRAKRAZRDESH

LmiEL o
RZZE—AFWNA=+H ZHBAKRETSER( L
m&ﬁ)iﬂ/ﬁﬁ% 5%( —ZF—PU4F : 5%) AT A

YR ER A AEE 2 BT SE(RREEE)E
ST RARMD,HEN

The Group
EE

2015 2014
=F-1% —T-mF
Decrease/ Decrease/
(increase) (increase)
on loss after on loss after
tax and tax and

accumulated accumulated

losses losses
MR EEER MBI BB R
2HEER 2HEEA

WL /() /()
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHT

Change in the relevant equity price risk variable:  fBREIR(E R & &~ & &)

Increase o 5% 1,299 5% 1,370
Decrease Vo (5%) (1,299) (5%) (1,370)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in the Group’s loss after
tax (and accumulated losses) that would arise assuming that the changes in the stock
market index had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the
fair values of the Group’s equity investments would change in accordance with the
historical correlation with the relevant stock market index, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

FREMNMER REBETSHEBEHONRERREE I
ERMNEMtEAREPTRHA L E SR A SE G
HXZM RER TS T A HAKE BRRRER(RREER)

BERZ T E - TERRAKEFEFRE 2 2 FEBRRA
?ﬁﬁﬁTm%Ta%lZFiKEﬁﬁ\i{ﬁﬁxéﬂ i BT A E A B RIS T
o —T—PUEZ ST TRARR ELEETT



40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
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40. BEREBREEBERBE (£)

a) H¥EREZ (&)

vi)  Fair values vi) 2 FlE
i) Financial instruments carried at fair value ) RAFEIEREZEEIA
The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial instruments TERAZIZAEENBTAZ AFEDNRSE
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into BRI R EEEN B WD BAT BT EHmEE
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. BB BRATEFEMATZ =R R FEEE B
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with AFENEDEZERDIELEN T HERMAT
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation BERBEzIBREREBHEBET
technique as follows:
Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted F—gEE: BEAS— R ASERBIRTE2ERE
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement BESBERARERM S RCAZRE)FEZA
date. FE -
Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable FERMEE FRE-ARASEBIREEDNE R
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. Z ARG ABUR) B RERERT A BRE AR
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not available. AEZAFE - THBEREABBAETSHEZHA
g o
Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs. FEoREE: FREATUBRGABIEFEZ AT
e
The Group
rEE
2015
—E-fHE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B -t 3 H=M et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FaT FaT FHx FHx
Assets &E
Equity investments at fair value RN ELBREZ
through profit or loss BHEE 31,124 - - 31,124
2014
—E—MF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE— F4 B Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA&T FAT FAExT FA&T
Assets BE
Equity investments at fair value BAFENERSEZ
through profit or loss BHEE 32,815 - - 32,815

During the year there were no transfers between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

FRF-RAE R TAZELEER-
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

40. BEREBREEBERBE (£)

a) Financial risk factors (Continued) a) H¥EREZ (&)
vi)  Fair values (Continued) vi) 2 FlE
ii)  Fair value of financial instruments carried at other than fair value (i) FEEATFEIEZHBEERABZATE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost or NEE KA EX AR BT AKREE
amortised cost, except for those available-for-sale investments (note 22) of which (RN 22T sF i A FE AT RERI 2Rt 227
the fair value cannot be measured reliably, are not materially different from their HHERERIINBER T —NFER =T —RFN
fair values as at 30 April 2014 and 2015. A=+tHZATEITESERELR -
b) Capital risk management h) EXEBER
The Group’s objective when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to FAEEEEEAZ BN ARERAEERFELE 2N LA
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits IR e SRRk A MEEEE ARENE  TERSEE
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of ARBRHE DURE B AR AR o
capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of AEEAUABARINFREZRECHE BEEATR
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. R BITHR R ARE AR -
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio, which is calculated as total FEERBABLERERER  BELEDNREGSHBAR
borrowings divided by total equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial KA TZEERERUNBERTE - R_S—NFR=F
position. The gearing ratios as at 30 April 2015 and 2014 were as follows: —=FNA=tHZBELERNAT :
The Group
rEE
2015 2014
—Z-afF —ZE-lmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Total borrowings- bank borrowings wiEE - RITEE 34,036 35,982
Total equity B 259,223 265,888
Gearing ratio BEL% 0.13 0.14
¢) Estimation of fair values o AFEMREE

The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair
values of the following financial instruments.

i) Securities

The fair value is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The
quoted market price used for securities held by the Group is the closing bid price at the
end of the reporting period.

ii)  Bank borrowings

In respect of the Group’s borrowings, the carrying amounts were not materially
different from their fair values as at 30 April 2015 and 2014. The fair value is estimated
as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates
for similar financial instruments.

AT AR THMBTRAAPEZERHERBR -

RVETERBEHR 2 THREAE - BRAEER
BREFZTEREDRBERRZETEAE

i) RITEEE

HASEY S EEAERR -2 AFR-2-m
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015
BE-Z-AFNA=1+HLEE

41. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities recognised

M. BERBD 2MBEEREERE

AEERARBARBERRER M BEERABERZERE

at the end of the reporting period are categorised as follows. ENEwT :
The Group The Company
~EE AT
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RE — TP —E-AE —T—uEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHET FATT
Financial Assets MBEE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEAERSRZ
through profit or loss: MBEE
— Held for trading: —BEEEAR :
Equity investments at fair value BRAFEIERYIRZ
through profit or loss EBHIRE 31,124 32,815 - -
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 2,452 2,452 - -
Loan and receivables: BER R EYWE
— Accounts receivable — FEYRER R - 1,756 - -
— Amounts due from subsidiaries L =YNCIE S - - 264,358 249,807
— Loans and advances to money lending customers — A UE R P B 7 &2 R 8,387 4,388 - -
— Rental receivables — RS 274 71 - -
— Other receivables — H A FEURBR X 20,812 23,657 - -
— Other refundable deposit —HiriRERS 7,754 7,754 - -
— Staff advance —BI#R - 103 - -
— Credit card receivables — A RERE - 43 - -
— Deposits placed with financial institutions — S RIEETFR 1,495 6,423 -
— Cash and bank balances - RIRTTHEH 55,366 51,647 3,694 16,092
94,088 95,842 268,052 265,899
127,664 131,109 268,052 265,899
Financial Liabilities HBEE
Financial liabilities measured at REHEKATEZ
amortised cost: MBALE :
— Accounts payable —FERTERER - 1,993 - -
— Accruals — FEFHRIE 6,679 6,424 114 -
— Accrued staff benefits —[EETBITAEF| 759 4,533 350 -
— Other payables — Hpth JER IR 153 77 27 27
— Amounts due to subsidiaries — BB AR A - - 16,100 16,100
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 34,036 35,982 - -
41,627 49,009 16,591 16,127
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M H AR MY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015
BE-Z-AFNA=THLEE

42. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 42.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers?

ERMGENMRREE-ZE-AFENA=THLFELER

2R - HAEARREZEEYE

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations®

Disclosure initiative®

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation®

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer plants®

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions*
Equity method in separate financial statements®
Investment entities: Applying the consolidation exception®

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle®

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle®

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

> EHffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited exceptions

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these new and
revised HKFRSs is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

43. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 43,

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to current year’s presentation. The
comparative loss from discontinued operation has been re-presented to include those operations
classified as discontinued in the current year.

BEAM RS LR F 5 BT A"

BBV REERE 145 REELERE?
ERBTHMELREISHE  REREPAHZME
ERMBRMEENENR Y WEBHESLBHS G
15857

BERGRERERZERT
BEGEAE 16 R
BB GRHERIE38TE 2
=4
BEGEAE 16 R
BRI RAFENTZ
(=5
BAEGERIFE195 2 BT
TR RERE7R BT EBHBHHERZA
ERMBRESENF 05 REZE: BRI ARIIME
AEFBWSERERE R

BB IS8 2

E&]

BAFBWMEERE05 L

WERE
AREMEREHETEZEE

B¥  EEILEY

REBMFTE : EEHF

REEFEEBENARAEDLE

BB RERIF285 2 ZRZEAERESIE
=5
BAPBRS KA ZETT BAYBHRSEN T -ZTF=E

TR FERE
ERMBREEN _F——FE
IRz FERE
BAYBHERN T ——FF
—E-IEHRzFERES

BRYBWEERZEFT

BRFBWMERERZERT

AEEREHEERNTEABUENI REETEBUBRE
BA 2B ESMERARM LRERT R RETEY
REMBHRRELEATE -

hBHF
ETHBRBFRETAR UNAAFEZENARN - BREE

BEBZLBBEEERZINAMARAFEE N ERELL
REZRFRT -



A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years prepared on the basis as hereunder stated is set out

below:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

A EEARAT FHH2015
SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
B ERE

A TIINEERE ASES I A AR BFEZEAMMEGREE
BUREBERBBZBENT

Consolidated for the year ended 30 April
HEBZENA=tTHLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-FF Z—ZET-WmE Z—T-= —g--F C—g2-—-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHIT FHIT FHIT FHBIT
(Restated )
(/=E=3)
Revenue W 12,889 6,774 34,216 27,650 52,112
Loss before taxation B RTEE (3,563) (24,944) (9,076) (41,151) (10,283)
Income tax FR1SHE 61 (1,6971) 475 (69) (280)
Loss for the year from continuing SEREEBR 2 AFE
operations E518 (3,502) (26,635) - - -
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIEEEEB CARFE
operation g (316) (7,941) - - -
Loss for the year REERE (6,663) (34,582) (8,601) (41,220) (10,563)
Attributable to: THIE R -
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE ¥ =N (6,663) (34,582) (8,601) (41,220) (7,674)
Non-controlling interests 1T AR R 2 - - - - (2,889)
(6,663) (34,582) (8,601) (41,220) (10,563)
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RERERAHE
Consolidated as at 30 April
FERMNA=+A
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—2-"F -E2-mF =-%-= —2--% =-®2——-%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FHIT FHEIT FHBIT
TOTAL ASSETS wEE 340,369 341,539 374,616 384,194 427,635
TOTAL LIABILITIES wafE (81,146) (75,651) (74,976) (75,952) (78,708)
259,223 265,888 299,640 308,242 348,927
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LIST OF PROPERTIES

L EXTE
Locations Existing use Term of lease
i B REAR HEHIR
Investment properties
REWE
1. Flat E, 9/F, Tower 1, StarCrest, 9 Star Street, Wanchai, Hong Kong Residential Medium term
BB ETEHS 2 BB EIEEE F= A
2. Flat H, 6/F., Tower 5, Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon Residential Medium term
B NERAWE B 4858 E Mo RE6EH = E2== HE
3. Flat B, 10/F., Tower 7, Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon Residential Medium term
BEBNEAME SHSHSERF7TEI0EBE = i
4. Flat C, 10/F., Tower 7, Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon Residential Medium term
BEBNEAWE SHSHEERF7TE10ECE *= A
5. Flat D, 43/F., Tower | and Car Parking Space No. 2-083, 2/F., The Harbourside, No. 1 Austin Road
West, Kowloon Residential Medium term
BENENTAERIRERR N 1EE43EDE R F2-08358EM =2 HEA
6. Unit A, 25/F.,, Le Royal Arc, Avenida Sir Anders Ljungstedt, Macau Residential Medium term
SELPT i BT R R RS IS S BEPT 2518 AR F=E B
7. Flat A&B, 2/F., Queen’s Centre, 58-64 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong Commercial Medium term
B EF A RERS8-64RBEEEPL2MEARBE [EES T
8. Residential car parking space 602 on 6th Floor of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom,
Kowloon Residential Medium term
BEBNBAWE SHSE B F6E6025RF EHNL F=  HA
9. Residential car parking space 604 on 6th Floor of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom,
Kowloon Residential Medium term
BB NBRABE S1H85 8 B/ F 61260457 (X BE(L F= HHj
10. Residential car parking space 637 on 6th Floor of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom,
Kowloon Residential Medium term
BEENBRAHE 24858 BrmFeiE637 (I EBAL F=E A
11. Office E, 22nd Floor, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kowloon Commercial Medium term
BENEBEBEES R R EIS2ELE [SES A
12, BN RN E AT L #5 23355736065 Commercial Medium term
[EES T
13. Shop 4, Ground Floor, King Palace Plaza, No. 55 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong Commercial Medium term
BB NEREIBHE G EEE S 45748 [HES A
Leasehold land and building held for own use carried at cost
URASERERERAZHEL B RIEF
1. Office A, 17th Floor, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong Commercial Medium term
BN EBIERE BRI REEIS17EAE [EES A
2. (Car parking space No. P25 on 1st Floor, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong Commercial Medium term
BN RRBIE S EES N R R IV FE P25 B L [SES A



vongroup

www.thevongroup.com




	封面
	目錄
	管理層討論與分析
	董事簡介
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	財務資料概要
	物業列表
	封底



